
1.   Call to Order 

 

2.   Confirmation of Disclosures of Conflicts of     
   Interest  

 



NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT 

Notice of Meeting 

Monday, March 14, 2022, at 1:00 PM 

32825 Co Rd 39, Lucerne, CO 80646 

THE BOARD MEETING WILL BE OPEN TO THE PUBLIC BY TELECONFERENCE 

Information to join by Phone is below: 

Call-In Number: 1(720)707-2699, Meeting ID: 873 5785 0771, Passcode: 475314 

 

AGENDA 

1. Call to Order 
 

2. Confirmation of Disclosures of Conflicts of Interest  
 

3. Action: Approve March 14, 2022, NWCWD Board Meeting Agenda 
 

4. Consent Agenda: (These items are considered to be routine and will be approved 
by one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless 
requested, in which event, the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and 
considered in the Regular Agenda) (Enclosures) 

a. Minutes from February 14,2022 Regular Meetings 
b. Acceptance of Unaudited February 2022 Financial Statements 
c. Approve Invoices through March 14, 2022 
d. Amendment to Master Service Contract Providence Infrastructure   
e. Independent Contractor Agreement with Stantec for Consulting Services 
f. Longs Peak Dairy Reallocation of 5 Plant Investments 
g. Ryan Woodland Relocate Water Tap  
h. Teal Creek Valuation  
i. Easements County Road Project 

WCR 66/41 Project 

i. Permanent Water Easement Agreement – Five M Farm Co 
ii. Temporary Construction Easement Agreement – Five M Farm Co 
iii. Permanent Water Easement Agreement – Hungenberg RD Farms 

LLLP 
iv. Temporary Construction Easement Agreement – Hungenberg RD 

Farms LLLP 

v. Temporary Construction Easement Agreement – Hungenberg BOH 
Farms LLLP 

vi. Temporary Construction Easement Agreement – Tomoi Farms LLC 
 

WCR 35 

vii. Permanent Water Easement Agreement – Hungenberg 
 



5. Back Flow and Cross Connection Non-Compliance Meter Turn Offs 
a. Variance Requests  

i. Alex Karrol 
ii. Alkire Lake farm, Inc. 

 
b. Meter Shut Off Locations for Non – Compliance with BFPCC 

 
6. Action: Consider Adoption of Resolution No. 20220314-01: Resolution Adopting a 

Commercial Drought Policy (enclosure) 
 

7. Action: Consider Adoption of Resolution No. 202200314-02: Resolution Adopting 
a Residential Drought Policy (enclosure) 
 

8. Action: Consider Adoption of Resolution No. 20220314-03: Resolution Adopting a 
Commercial Flow Control Policy (enclosure) 
 

9. Action: Consider Adoption of Resolution No. 20220314-04: Resolution Adopting a 
Residential Plant Investment Purchase Policy (enclosure) 
 

10. Water Tap Sale Matters: 

a. Update re Taps Sales 

 

b. Action: Consider Tap Sale Proposed Increase in Sales for March 2022 

 

c. Variance Requests:   

i. Action: Consider Approval of Variance Request for Plant Investment 

Sales Town of Severance (enclosures) 

ii. Action: Consider Approval of Variance Request from Jason Jones 

(enclosure) 

 

d. CORA Requests 

i. Town of Severance 

ii. Christ Wood – BizWest 

 

e. Update re Eagle View Farms, LLC Litigation 

 

11. Executive Session: The Board reserves the right to enter into Executive Session 
for the following purposes: Receiving legal advice and discussing matters subject 
to negotiation and strategy pursuant to § 24-6-402(4)(b) & (e), C.R.S. related to 
Eagle View Farms, LLC Litigation and Severance Water Plant Investment Variance 
Request 

 
12. May 2022 Director Election Update 

 
13. District Manager’s Report: 

 

a. CMAR Bid Process Newt III 
b. SPAR Permit City of Fort Collins Accepted 
c. DFA Meeting April 26, 2022 



 
14. Public Comment (3 Minute Time Limit; Items Not Otherwise on the Agenda) 

 
15. Other Business  

 

 
ADJOURN   P.M. 



 February 14, 2022, Special Meeting P a g e  | 1 

 MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF 

DIRECTORS OF THE NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT 

 

 Held: Monday, the 10th day of January, 2022, at 1:00 P.M.   

 

 The meeting was conducted via teleconference. 

 

ATTENDANCE The meeting was held in accordance with the laws of the State of 

Colorado. The following directors were in attendance: 

  

Gene Stille, President 

Ron Buxman, Treasurer 

Scott Cockroft, Secretary 

Brad Cook, Assistant Secretary 

Tad Stout, Assistant Secretary 

 

 Also present were: Eric Reckentine, General Manager of the 

District; Zachary P. White, Esq., WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA 

& WALDRON, District general counsel; George Oamek, 

Headwaters Corp; Paul Weiss, Williams and Weiss Consulting; 

Kara Godbehere, Lyons Gaddis, special counsel;  Chris Wood, 

BizWest, Members of the Public via teleconference. 

ADMINISTRATIVE 

MATTERS 

 

 

Call to Order  The meeting was called to order at 1:05 P.M. 

 

Declaration of Quorum and 

Confirmation of Director 

Qualifications 

 

Mr. Stille noted that a quorum for the Board was present and that 

the directors had confirmed their qualification to serve. 

  

Reaffirmation of Disclosures 

of Potential or Existing 

Conflicts of Interest 

Mr. White advised the Board that, pursuant to Colorado law, 

certain disclosures might be required prior to taking official action 

at the meeting. Mr. White reported that disclosures for those 

directors that provided WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & 

WALDRON with notice of potential or existing conflicts of interest, 

if any, were filed with the Secretary of State’s Office and the 

Board at least 72 hours prior to the meeting, in accordance with 

Colorado law, and those disclosures were acknowledged by the 

Board. Mr. White inquired into whether members of the Board 

had any additional disclosures of potential or existing conflicts of 

interest about any matters scheduled for discussion at the meeting. 

All directors reviewed the agenda for the meeting and confirmed 

that they have no additional conflicts of interest in connection with 

any of the matters listed on the agenda.  

 

Approval of Agenda Mr. Reckentine presented the Board with the agenda for the 

meeting.  Upon motion of Mr. Stout, seconded by Mr. Cockroft, 



 February 14, 2022, Regular Meeting P a g e  | 2 

the Board unanimously approved the agenda, as amended to move 

consideration of Resolution 20220214 following consideration of 

the Consent Agenda. 

  

Consider Approval of 

Resolution No. 20220214-01 

Resolution Concerning Tap 

Sale Policy and Moratorium 

 

Mr. Reckentine presented the proposed Resolution lifting the 

District’s tap sale moratorium in zones 1, 2, 7 & 7B of the District 

water distribution system and establishing a policy whereby 

property owners may purchase water taps.  Mr. Reckentine 

discussed that the policy is intended to allow the District to begin 

selling water taps again, but to limit the sales so the District can 

control the demand on it system.  The policy allows for limited tap 

sales per month.  The Board discussed allowing up to 50 water 

taps to be sold through the end of March, and then up to 10 per 

month thereafter.  Following discussion, upon a motion of Mr. 

Cockroft, seconded by Mr. Stille, the Board approve Resolution 

20220201-01 as amended to allow for up to 50 taps to be sold 

through the end of March.  Director Stout abstained. 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

MATTERS 

Mr. Reckentine presented the Board with the consent agenda 

items.   

 

Upon motion of Mr. Stout, seconded by Mr. Buxman, the Board 

unanimously took the following actions:  
a. Approval of Minutes from January 10, 2022 Regular Meeting 

b. Acceptance of Unaudited January 2022 Financial Statements 

c. Approval of Invoices through February 14, 2022 

d. Approval of City of Thornton Access License Agreement 

(Nunc Pro Tunc) 
e. Waiver Valuations 

i. Hungeberg BOH 
ii. Five M Farm Co 
iii. Tomoi Farms 

f. Approval of Providence Amendments No. 45 TO 5 & No. 46 

TO 9 
g. Approval of Nickel Road Lease Offer for unleased minerals 

 

Discussion re NWCWD 

Commercial and Residential 

Drought Triggers 

Mr. Weiss and Mr. Oamek presented an updated Technical 

Memorandum regarding drought mitigation with updates 

regarding commercial drought triggers and recommendations.  

Residential and commercial drought triggers and restrictions were 

recommended.  Following discussion, the Board directed staff and 

legal to prepare residential and commercial drought policies for 

consideration by the Board. 

 

No action was taken. 

 

Discussion re Commercial 

Flow Control Policy 

Mr. Reckentine discussed with the Board the status of installation 

of flow control devices on commercial users and indicated that the 



 February 14, 2022, Regular Meeting P a g e  | 3 

 devices are in the process of being installed.  Mr. Reckentine 

indicated that Staff needs direction from the Board about where to 

set the flow controls.  The Board discussed that flow controls 

allow the District to understand demand and the hydraulic model, 

and to manage growth within the District.  Mr. Reckentine 

discussed with the Board the review of flow rates and 

recommended setting the flow control devices for each user at 

their peak flows from 2021.  Following discussion, the Board 

directed staff and legal to prepare a flow control policy for 

consideration by the Board. 

 

No action was taken. 

 

Consider Statement of 

Opposition in Case No. 

21CW3234 ACCWA/United 

Application 

 

Ms. Godbehere discussed with the Board Case No. 21CW3234 

ACCWA/United and recommended the District file a statement of 

opposition.  Following discussion, upon a motion by Mr. Stout, 

seconded by Mr. Cockroft, the Board unanimously approved the 

Statement of Opposition for filing. 

 

Moratorium Discussion 
a. Larimer County 1041 

Regulations 

b. Eagle View Farms, LLC 

Litigation 

c. Customer Contacts 

d. CORA Request 

Mr. Reckentine updated the Board regarding tap sale moratorium 

matters.  Mr. Reckentine indicated that Larimer County has lifted 

its moratorium related to its 1041 regulations. 

 

Mr. White updated the Board regarding a complaint filed against 

the District by Eagle View Farms, LLC related to a request for tap 

sales.  Mr. White indicated that the District will have until March 

7, 2022 to file a response to the complaint.  Ms. Cotter will be 

filing the response. 

 

Mr. White presented to the Board a letter from Fox Rothschild on 

behalf of Babcock Land Corp. and HR Exchange, LLC related to 

the Moratorium.  No action was taken. 

 

Mr. White updated the Board regarding a CORA Request related 

to applicability of the moratorium.  Mr. White has worked with 

staff and consultants to respond to the request. 

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

Not Needed. 

    

DISTRICT MANAGER’S 

REPORT 

 

  

 

Mr. Reckentine reported the following to the Board:  

• Purchase of New Ditch Which 

• Financial Advisor Engagement 

• Northern Water Presentation 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

 

Mr. Nick Wharton from the Town of Severance addressed the 

Board regarding the Town’s request for purchase of plant 

investments.  The Town is requesting 65 plant investments now.  



 February 14, 2022, Regular Meeting P a g e  | 4 

Mr. Reckentine indicated that he would work on how to address 

sales going forward to wholesale clients. 

 

Mr. Todd Bean addressed the Board about future taps sales and 

shared his views regarding overuse by commercial users. 

 

Mr. Jerry Paul addressed the Board on behalf of the Up Hill 

Community and requested consideration for the sale of taps to the 

remaining lots in the community. 

 

Mr. Chris Wood addressed the Board and shared that he though 

the Zoom meeting was difficult to follow without a video. 

 

OTHER BUSINESS None. 

 

ADJOURNMENT There being no further business to be conducted, the meeting was 

adjourned. 

 

 The foregoing constitutes a true and correct copy of the minutes of 

the above-referenced meeting 

 

 

 

               

     Secretary for the District 

 



NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
Balance Sheet

February 28, 2022

ASSETS

Current Assets
1014 - BANK OF COLORADO $ 2,512,678.57
1015 - COLO TRUST - GENERAL 18,286,150.47
1017 - COLO TRUST- RRR 265,563.25
1019 - COLO TRUST - 2019 BOND 2,615,606.25
1030 - CASH DRAWER 200.00
1035 - CONTRA CASH RESERVE (1,705,883.00)
1050 - CASH RESERVE (CWRPDA) 1,705,883.00
1100 - AR WATER (DRIP) 1,311,494.52
1105 - AR CONSTRUCTION METERS 105,645.91
1116 - ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 146,249.60
1230 - PREPAID INSURANCE 91,686.66
1300 - INVENTORY 1,508,723.71

Total Current Assets 26,843,998.94

Property and Equipment
1220 - LAND BUILDING SITE 541,875.18
1222 - CSU DRYING BEDS 28,612.00
1225 - LAND & EASEMENTS 2,450,483.51
1405 - WATER RIGHTS OWNED 86,180,451.44
1407 - WATER STORAGE 5,726,726.97
1415 - MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT 2,204,383.04
1416 - DEPREC -  MACH & EQUIP (1,645,643.61)
1420 - OFFICE EQUIPMENT 52,720.33
1421 - DEPREC - OFFICE EQUIP (52,720.11)
1425 - PIPELINES 70,160,785.21
1426 - DEPREC - PIPELINES (23,726,280.62)
1430 - STORAGE TANKS 2,367,776.75
1431 - DEPREC - STORAGE TANKS (1,470,427.76)
1432 - MASTER METERS 684,914.94
1433 - DEPREC MASTER METERS (27,157.18)
1435 - PUMP STATIONS 5,636,955.14
1436 - DEPREC -  PUMP STATIONS (2,411,788.84)
1437 - FILL STATION 15,555.00
1438 - DEPREC - FILL STATION (3,111.00)
1440 - PAVING 25,500.20
1441 - DEPREC - PAVING (25,499.80)
1445 - OFFICE BUILDING 1,644,152.98
1446 - DEPREC - BUILDING (485,334.42)
1454 - CONSTRUCT IN PROGRESS 2,836,180.16

Total Property and Equipment 150,709,109.51

Other Assets
1457 - FILTER PLANT EQUITY 22,849,610.70
1464 - BOND INSURANCE 5,098.00
1466 - Bond Cst of Issue '19 206,078.00

Total Other Assets 23,060,786.70

Total Assets $ 200,613,895.15

LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL

Current Liabilities
2216 - CONST MTR DEPOSITS $ 103,500.00
2230 - ACCRUED WAGES 61,575.66
2231 - ACCRUED COMP ABSENCES 130,587.76

Unaudited - For Management Purposes Only



NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
Balance Sheet

February 28, 2022

2232 - ACCRUED INTEREST 129,262.50

Total Current Liabilities 424,925.92

Long-Term Liabilities
2220 - CURT PRT/ LONGTERM DEBT 5,000.00
2221 - 2012 BONDS PAYABLE 3,090,000.00
2222 - 2019 Bond Payable 16,160,000.00
2223 - Bond  Premium '19 851,447.00
2224 - 2020 BOND PAYABLE 3,450,000.00
2228 - NET PREM/DISCT '12 BOND 73,293.00
2229 - PREMIUM ON 2009A LOAN 66,472.00

Total Long-Term Liabilities 23,696,212.00

Total Liabilities 24,121,137.92

Capital
2800 - RETAINED EARNINGS 174,678,870.84
Net Income 1,813,886.39

Total Capital 176,492,757.23

Total Liabilities & Capital $ 200,613,895.15

Unaudited - For Management Purposes Only



Page: 1
NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT

INCOME STATEMENT
DETAIL

FOR THE TWO MONTHS ENDING FEBRUARY 28, 2022

CURRENT
MONTH YTD BUDGET

+ OR -
BUDGET

%
BUDGET

REVENUES
3110 - METERED SALES $ 841,693.87 $ 1,693,038.71 $ 11,484,447.00 9,791,408.29 14.74
3111 - WATER ALLOC SURCHARGE 142,084.00 277,440.00 2,625,016.00 2,347,576.00 10.57
3112 - PLANT INVEST SURCHARGE 208,007.00 267,698.80 2,132,826.00 1,865,127.20 12.55
3113 - ADJUSTMENTS (2,844.74) (6,835.32) (20,000.00) (13,164.68) 34.18
3140 - CONST METER USAGE 42,166.03 67,715.06 205,000.00 137,284.94 33.03
3141 - CONSTR METER RENTAL 735.00 2,040.00 5,500.00 3,460.00 37.09
3142 - CONSTRUCT METER REPAIR 522.40 1,814.64 550.00 (1,264.64) 329.93

OPERATING 1,232,363.56 2,302,911.89 16,433,339.00 14,130,427.11 14.01

3210 INTEREST-COTRUST-GENERAL 633.18 1,167.64 130,384.00 129,216.36 0.90
3220 - PORT PARTONAGE AGFINITY 0.00 0.00 812.00 812.00 0.00

NON OPERATING 633.18 1,167.64 131,196.00 130,028.36 0.89

3310 - TAP (PI) FEES 70,600.00 118,100.00 1,000,000.00 881,900.00 11.81
3311 - DISTANCE FEES 9,900.00 17,400.00 173,189.00 155,789.00 10.05
3312 - WATER (ALLOCATION) FEE 232,000.00 232,000.00 300,000.00 68,000.00 77.33
3314 - INSTALLATION FEES 20,350.00 476,257.45 324,730.00 (151,527.45) 146.66
3315 - METER  RELOCATION FEE 0.00 0.00 1,624.00 1,624.00 0.00
3316 - LINE EXTENSION FEE 0.00 0.00 150,000.00 150,000.00 0.00
3320 - NON-POTABLE TAP FEE 26,000.00 46,000.00 48,709.00 2,709.00 94.44
3321 - NON-POTABLE INSTALL 11,100.00 18,200.00 21,649.00 3,449.00 84.07
3330 - COMMITMENT LETTER FEE 0.00 0.00 796.00 796.00 0.00
3331 - REVIEW FEE 0.00 500.00 2,706.00 2,206.00 18.48
3332 - REVIEW DEPOSIT 0.00 5,000.00 0.00 (5,000.00) 0.00
3340 - INSPECTION FEE 0.00 0.00 134,389.00 134,389.00 0.00

NEW SERVICE 369,950.00 913,457.45 2,157,792.00 1,244,334.55 42.33

3410 - WATER RENTAL 0.00 0.00 17,850.00 17,850.00 0.00

AG WATER 0.00 0.00 17,850.00 17,850.00 0.00

3510 - CAR TIME 0.00 0.00 9,742.00 9,742.00 0.00
3520 - TRANSFER FEES 0.00 2,000.00 5,412.00 3,412.00 36.95
3530 - RISE TOWER RENT 300.00 600.00 7,902.00 7,302.00 7.59
3540 - SAFETY GRANT (CSD) 0.00 0.00 11,907.00 11,907.00 0.00

MISCELLANEOUS 300.00 2,600.00 34,963.00 32,363.00 7.44

3600 - FARM INCOME 0.00 0.00 (9,201.00) (9,201.00) 0.00
3610 - MINERAL/OIL/GAS RIGHTS 0.00 0.00 (63,672.00) (63,672.00) 0.00
3640 - EQUIPMENT/VEHICLE SALE 0.00 0.00 (541.00) (541.00) 0.00

FARM INCOME 0.00 0.00 73,414.00 73,414.00 0.00

3700 - BOND PROCEEDS 0.00 0.00 38,000,000.00 38,000,000.00 0.00

DEBT PROCEEDS 0.00 0.00 (38,000,000.00) (38,000,000.00) 0.00

FOR MANAGEMENT PURPOSES ONLY



Page: 2
NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT

INCOME STATEMENT
DETAIL

FOR THE TWO MONTHS ENDING FEBRUARY 28, 2022

CURRENT
MONTH YTD BUDGET

+ OR -
BUDGET

%
BUDGET

TOTAL REVENUES 1,603,246.74 3,220,136.98 56,848,554.00 53,628,417.02 5.66

OPERATING EXPENSE
4110 - POTABLE WATER 0.00 201,749.92 2,536,484.52 2,334,734.60 7.95
4130 - CARRYOVER 0.00 0.00 89,450.03 89,450.03 0.00
4140 - WINTER WATER 0.00 0.00 5,520.40 5,520.40 0.00
4150 - ASSESSMENTS 7,414.50 251,614.24 1,443,962.24 1,192,348.00 17.43
4160 - RULE 11 FEES 0.00 0.00 63,765.00 63,765.00 0.00
4170 - WATER QUALITY - TESTING 1,523.00 1,723.00 6,072.44 4,349.44 28.37

WATER (8,937.50) (455,087.16) (4,145,254.63) (3,690,167.47) 10.98

4210 - SALARIES, FIELD 79,409.91 169,924.43 1,056,784.98 886,860.55 16.08
4220 - SALARIES, ENGINEERING 7,934.32 15,820.10 225,284.46 209,464.36 7.02
4240 - INSURANCE HEALTH 18,450.11 39,307.82 188,752.00 149,444.18 20.83
4250 - RETIREMENT 6,084.90 12,152.73 82,256.14 70,103.41 14.77
4260 - AWARDS 0.00 0.00 1,324.58 1,324.58 0.00
4270 - UNIFORMS 0.00 1,299.74 6,500.00 5,200.26 20.00
4280 - MISCELLANEOUS 0.00 0.00 1,103.81 1,103.81 0.00
4290 - CAR TIME 0.00 0.00 9,934.32 9,934.32 0.00

PERSONNEL OPERATIONS (111,879.24) (238,504.82) (1,571,940.29) (1,333,435.47) 15.17

4410 - FIELD 0.00 3,123.57 0.00 (3,123.57) 0.00
4411 - UNCC LOCATES 0.00 933.40 15,197.35 14,263.95 6.14
4412 - FARM PROPERTIES 0.00 0.00 2,706.08 2,706.08 0.00
4413 - SITE MAINTENANCE ANNUAL 0.00 0.00 5,586.20 5,586.20 0.00
4414 - CONSTRUCTION METER 0.00 2,036.29 0.00 (2,036.29) 0.00
4415 - WATER LINES (REPAIRS) 3,875.00 16,630.72 50,000.00 33,369.28 33.26
4416 - APPURTENANCE(REPAIR) 0.00 1,487.89 0.00 (1,487.89) 0.00
4417 - METER SETTING 0.00 6,999.00 108,243.00 101,244.00 6.47
4418 - MASTER METERS 1,900.00 2,713.50 159,181.20 156,467.70 1.70
4419 - SERVICE WORK 0.00 7,203.24 0.00 (7,203.24) 0.00
4420 - STORAGE TANKS (O & M) 87.76 27,692.76 22,500.00 (5,192.76) 123.08
4430 - PUMP STATIONS (O & M) 0.00 523.47 10,612.08 10,088.61 4.93
4435 - CHLORINE STATION 1,943.05 2,719.61 5,306.04 2,586.43 51.25
4440 - EQUIPMENT (2,102.71) 10,100.94 42,335.83 32,234.89 23.86
4445 - SCADA EQUIPMENT 0.00 0.00 5,412.16 5,412.16 0.00
4446 - LOCATING EQUIPMENT 0.00 0.00 5,412.16 5,412.16 0.00
4447 - GPS EQUIPMENT 0.00 0.00 25,978.37 25,978.37 0.00
4450 - SHOP/YARD 482.44 2,450.71 27,060.80 24,610.09 9.06
4460 - VEHICLES 691.70 12,011.18 100,000.00 87,988.82 12.01
4470 - SAFETY 893.00 4,634.36 65,000.00 60,365.64 7.13
4480 - CONTROL VAULTS 0.00 9.58 28,652.62 28,643.04 0.03
4490 - MAPPING EXPENSE 1,227.50 1,227.50 39,184.04 37,956.54 3.13

OPERATION & MAINTENANCE (8,997.74) (102,497.72) (718,367.93) (615,870.21) 14.27

4500 - ENGINEERING 0.00 0.00 250,000.00 250,000.00 0.00

FOR MANAGEMENT PURPOSES ONLY



Page: 3
NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT

INCOME STATEMENT
DETAIL

FOR THE TWO MONTHS ENDING FEBRUARY 28, 2022

CURRENT
MONTH YTD BUDGET

+ OR -
BUDGET

%
BUDGET

ENGINEERING 0.00 0.00 (250,000.00) (250,000.00) 0.00

4600 - ELECTRICITY 3,536.48 11,976.33 0.00 (11,976.33) 0.00
4610 - PRV'S 0.00 0.00 50,000.00 50,000.00 0.00
4620 - STORAGE TANKS 0.00 0.00 50,000.00 50,000.00 0.00
4630 - PUMP STATIONS 0.00 3,073.48 170,000.00 166,926.52 1.81
4640 - METER VAULTS 0.00 0.00 38,000.00 38,000.00 0.00
4650 - FILL STATION 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 0.00

ELECTRICITY (3,536.48) (15,049.81) (313,000.00) (297,950.19) 4.81

4700 - COMMUNICATIONS 0.00 125.18 50,000.00 49,874.82 0.25

COMMUNICATIONS 0.00 (125.18) (50,000.00) (49,874.82) 0.25

4810 - GENERAL 3,865.42 8,043.84 40,738.42 32,694.58 19.75
4820 - AUTO 1,374.75 2,749.50 7,347.55 4,598.05 37.42
4830 - WORKER'S COMP 3,615.50 7,231.00 34,374.80 27,143.80 21.04

INSURANCE (8,855.67) (18,024.34) (82,460.77) (64,436.43) 21.86

4930 - BAD DEBT EXPENSE 0.00 0.00 3,714.23 3,714.23 0.00

MISCELLANEOUS 0.00 0.00 (3,714.23) (3,714.23) 0.00

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 142,206.63 829,289.03 7,134,737.85 6,305,448.82 11.62

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE
5110 - OFFICE 40,601.72 82,912.62 511,192.34 428,279.72 16.22

SALARIES 40,601.72 82,912.62 511,192.34 428,279.72 16.22

5210 - FICA 9,909.49 20,933.01 102,831.06 81,898.05 20.36
5220 - UNEMPLOYMENT (27.40) 1,283.08 4,870.94 3,587.86 26.34

PAYROLL TAXES 9,882.09 22,216.09 107,702.00 85,485.91 20.63

5310 - ADMIN HEALTH INSURANCE 4,974.71 10,607.50 49,358.91 38,751.41 21.49

HEALTH INSURANCE 4,974.71 10,607.50 49,358.91 38,751.41 21.49

5400 - OFFICE UTILITIES 0.00 463.40 0.00 (463.40) 0.00
5401 - ELECTRICITY 0.00 0.00 27,060.80 27,060.80 0.00
5402 - PROPANE 0.00 4,796.46 0.00 (4,796.46) 0.00
5403 - TELEPHONE 1,951.18 3,902.36 21,648.64 17,746.28 18.03
5404 - CELL PHONE SERVICE 0.00 1,533.88 0.00 (1,533.88) 0.00
5405 - CELL PHONE ACCESSORIES 0.00 0.00 2,706.08 2,706.08 0.00
5406 - OFFICE CLEANING SERVICE 1,360.00 3,060.00 0.00 (3,060.00) 0.00
5410 - OFFICE EQUIPMENT 0.00 (18.51) 0.00 18.51 0.00
5412 - PRINTERS 1,323.38 1,481.80 0.00 (1,481.80) 0.00

FOR MANAGEMENT PURPOSES ONLY



Page: 4
NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT

INCOME STATEMENT
DETAIL

FOR THE TWO MONTHS ENDING FEBRUARY 28, 2022

CURRENT
MONTH YTD BUDGET

+ OR -
BUDGET

%
BUDGET

5413 - FURNITURE 0.00 0.00 2,706.08 2,706.08 0.00
5440 - COMPUTER 0.00 0.00 140,716.18 140,716.18 0.00
5441 - COMPUTER SUPPORT 5,026.50 10,053.00 64,945.93 54,892.93 15.48
5442 - HARDWARE (COMPUTERS) 0.00 0.00 43,297.29 43,297.29 0.00
5443 - SOFTWARE 0.00 175.50 5,412.16 5,236.66 3.24
5444 - LICENSES (ANNUAL) 1,232.55 1,232.55 27,060.80 25,828.25 4.55
5445 - SENSUS METER SUPPORT 0.00 0.00 2,164.86 2,164.86 0.00
5449 - INTERNET/EMAIL 0.00 0.00 21,648.64 21,648.64 0.00

OFFICE UTILITIES 10,893.61 26,680.44 359,367.46 332,687.02 7.42

5510 - OFFICE EXPENSES 8,401.58 22,955.70 171,673.74 148,718.04 13.37
5520 - POSTAGE 0.00 347.58 3,247.30 2,899.72 10.70
5530 - BANK / CREDIT CARD FEES 2,789.67 6,432.75 5,412.16 (1,020.59) 118.86
5540 - BUILDING MAINTENANCE 0.00 2,004.60 1,082.43 (922.17) 185.19
5550 - PUBLICATIONS 0.00 0.00 541.22 541.22 0.00
5560 - PRINTING 0.00 0.00 2,706.08 2,706.08 0.00
5580 - DUES & REGISTRATION 0.00 0.00 3,247.30 3,247.30 0.00
5590 - TRAINING 0.00 0.00 8,659.46 8,659.46 0.00

OFFICE EXPENSE 11,191.25 31,740.63 196,569.69 164,829.06 16.15

5610 - LEGAL 3,560.50 34,664.84 350,000.00 315,335.16 9.90
5620 - ACCOUNTING 0.00 1,450.00 26,010.00 24,560.00 5.57
5626 - RECORDING FEES 0.00 58.00 0.00 (58.00) 0.00
5630 - WATER TRANSFER FEES 2,409.26 2,409.26 0.00 (2,409.26) 0.00
5650 - CONSULTANT FEES 25,558.93 25,558.93 200,000.00 174,441.07 12.78
5660 - MEMBERSHIP FEES 0.00 0.00 8,843.40 8,843.40 0.00
5680 - LAND ACQUISITION 11,116.74 13,297.90 0.00 (13,297.90) 0.00

PROFESSIONAL FEES 42,645.43 77,438.93 584,853.40 507,414.47 13.24

5900 - MISCELLANEOUS 0.00 0.00 7,577.03 7,577.03 0.00
5920 - FIRE MITIGATION GRANT 28,975.20 28,975.20 0.00 (28,975.20) 0.00

MISCELLANEOUS 28,975.20 28,975.20 7,577.03 (21,398.17) 382.41

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE 149,164.01 280,571.41 1,816,620.83 1,536,049.42 15.44

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS

SOLDIER CANYON 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

6200 - STORAGE TANKS 0.00 0.00 5,900,000.00 5,900,000.00 0.00

STORAGE TANKS 0.00 0.00 5,900,000.00 5,900,000.00 0.00

PUMP STATIONS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

6410 - VEHICLES 0.00 0.00 6,410.00 6,410.00 0.00

FOR MANAGEMENT PURPOSES ONLY



Page: 5
NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT

INCOME STATEMENT
DETAIL

FOR THE TWO MONTHS ENDING FEBRUARY 28, 2022

CURRENT
MONTH YTD BUDGET

+ OR -
BUDGET

%
BUDGET

6420 - TRENCH BOX 0.00 0.00 6,420.00 6,420.00 0.00
6430 - BACKHOES 0.00 0.00 6,430.00 6,430.00 0.00
6440 - OTHER EQUIPMENT 0.00 86,673.55 90,000.00 3,326.45 96.30

EQUIPMENT 0.00 86,673.55 109,260.00 22,586.45 79.33

6505 - ENGINEERING 0.00 129,753.01 0.00 (129,753.01) 0.00
6510 - WATER LINES 0.00 0.00 13,550,000.00 13,550,000.00 0.00
6515 - METER UPGRADES 0.00 0.00 600,000.00 600,000.00 0.00
6525 - MASTER METER 4,939.59 4,939.59 0.00 (4,939.59) 0.00
6540 - AWIA & GENERATORS 0.00 0.00 276,440.00 276,440.00 0.00

SYSTEM 4,939.59 134,692.60 14,426,440.00 14,291,747.40 0.93

6610 - WATER RESOURCE MANAGER 0.00 538.72 0.00 (538.72) 0.00
6615 - GRAVEL PITS 0.00 0.00 400,000.00 400,000.00 0.00
6620 - WATER RIGHTS 0.00 0.00 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 0.00
6630 - LEGAL (WRM) 0.00 20,484.59 600,000.00 579,515.41 3.41
6640 - STORAGE 17,802.44 22,350.94 0.00 (22,350.94) 0.00

WATER RIGHTS 17,802.44 43,374.25 6,000,000.00 5,956,625.75 0.72

6710 - EASEMENTS 0.00 0.00 75,000.00 75,000.00 0.00
6720 - LAND 0.00 0.00 100,000.00 100,000.00 0.00
6730 - SURVEYING 31,649.75 31,649.75 5,000.00 (26,649.75) 633.00

LAND/EASEMENTS 31,649.75 31,649.75 180,000.00 148,350.25 17.58

BUILDING/PAVING 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

OFFICE EQUIPMENT/MISC 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

TOTAL CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS 54,391.78 296,390.15 26,615,700.00 26,319,309.85 1.11

BONDS

BOND ISSUE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

INTEREST 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

7250 - PLANT EXPANSION 0.00 0.00 1,231,000.00 1,231,000.00 0.00
7290 - 2012R NW 1054 0.00 0.00 1,530,000.00 1,530,000.00 0.00
7296 - 2020 BOND - WATER ENT 0.00 0.00 477,288.00 477,288.00 0.00

PRINCIPLE 0.00 0.00 3,238,288.00 3,238,288.00 0.00

INTEREST EXPENSE OTHER 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

FOR MANAGEMENT PURPOSES ONLY



Page: 6
NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT

INCOME STATEMENT
DETAIL

FOR THE TWO MONTHS ENDING FEBRUARY 28, 2022

CURRENT
MONTH YTD BUDGET

+ OR -
BUDGET

%
BUDGET

TOTAL BONDS 0.00 0.00 (3,238,288.00) (3,238,288.00) 0.00

DEPRECIATION & AMORT EXPENSES

DEPRECIATION & AMORT EXPENSE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

TOTAL REVENUES 1,603,246.74 3,220,136.98 56,848,554.00 53,628,417.02 5.66
TOTAL EXPENSES 345,762.42 1,406,250.59 38,805,346.68 37,399,096.09 3.62

PROFIT/LOSS 1,257,484.32 1,813,886.39 18,043,207.32 16,229,320.93 10.05

FOR MANAGEMENT PURPOSES ONLY



3/7/22 at 14:39:05.10 Page: 1

NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
Account Reconciliation

As of Feb 28, 2022
1014 - 1014 - BANK OF COLORADO

Bank Statement Date: February 28, 2022
Filter Criteria includes: Report is printed in Detail Format.

Beginning GL Balance 1,747,667.38

Add: Cash Receipts 891,943.83

Less: Cash Disbursements (969,423.68)

Add (Less) Other 842,491.04

Ending GL Balance 2,512,678.57

Ending Bank Balance 2,865,856.99

Add back deposits in transit

Total deposits in transit

(Less) outstanding checks
Sep 9, 2021 15687 (29.74)
Sep 9, 2021 15689 (23.28)
Sep 9, 2021 15694 (97.05)
Oct 20, 2021 15819 (1,100.00)
Oct 22, 2021 15848 (215.12)
Oct 22, 2021 15851 (19.24)
Nov 30, 2021 15955 (25.00)
Dec 15, 2021 15999 (23.28)
Dec 15, 2021 16008 (85.00)
Dec 15, 2021 16012 (12.72)
Dec 15, 2021 16020 (271.26)
Dec 30, 2021 16056 (31.04)
Jan 18, 2022 16082 (2,600.00)
Jan 18, 2022 16094 (4,628.55)
Jan 18, 2022 16097 (3,016.00)
Jan 20, 2022 16111 (4,249.78)
Jan 21, 2022 16129 (25.00)
Jan 27, 2022 16130 (58.00)
Jan 27, 2022 16131 (1,100.00)
Jan 27, 2022 16134 (500.00)
Feb 1, 2022 16144 (12,000.00)
Feb 2, 2022 16150 (46.56)
Feb 2, 2022 16151 (27.16)
Feb 2, 2022 16156 (23.28)
Feb 2, 2022 16157 (60.00)
Feb 2, 2022 16160 (46.56)
Feb 2, 2022 16162 (23.28)
Feb 2, 2022 16163 (43.03)
Feb 3, 2022 16164 (15.66)
Feb 3, 2022 16167 (48.28)
Feb 3, 2022 16169 (101.66)
Feb 3, 2022 16171 (1,006.15)
Feb 3, 2022 16176 (46.56)
Feb 3, 2022 16177 (45.00)
Feb 4, 2022 16180 (19,841.25)
Feb 4, 2022 16182 (6,999.00)
Feb 22, 2022 16217 (374.00)
Feb 22, 2022 16218 (7,014.50)
Feb 22, 2022 16219 (1,232.55)
Feb 22, 2022 16220 (1,100.00)
Feb 22, 2022 16222 (150.00)
Feb 22, 2022 16223 (190.00)
Feb 22, 2022 16224 (3,382.00)
Feb 23, 2022 16226 (178.50)
Feb 23, 2022 16227 (75.04)
Feb 23, 2022 16228 (451.94)
Feb 23, 2022 16230 (2,773.87)
Feb 23, 2022 16231 (2,409.26)



3/7/22 at 14:39:05.53 Page: 2

NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
Account Reconciliation

As of Feb 28, 2022
1014 - 1014 - BANK OF COLORADO

Bank Statement Date: February 28, 2022
Filter Criteria includes: Report is printed in Detail Format.

Feb 23, 2022 16232 (175.00)
Feb 23, 2022 16233 (418.11)
Feb 23, 2022 16234 (1,227.50)
Feb 23, 2022 16235 (11,116.74)
Feb 23, 2022 16236 (125.18)
Feb 24, 2022 16237 (248.95)
Feb 24, 2022 16238 (1,951.18)
Feb 24, 2022 16239 (220.00)
Feb 24, 2022 16240 (198.32)
Feb 24, 2022 16241 (790.76)
Feb 24, 2022 16242 (31,649.75)
Feb 24, 2022 16243 (400.00)
Feb 24, 2022 16244 (26.00)
Feb 24, 2022 16245 (17,802.44)
Feb 24, 2022 16246 (1,900.00)
Feb 24, 2022 16247 (4,939.59)
Feb 24, 2022 16248 (1,943.05)
Feb 24, 2022 16249 (1,329.00)
Feb 24, 2022 16250 (1,323.38)
Feb 16, 2022 OL-0216202 (206,123.61)
Feb 16, 2022 OL-0216202 (1,533.88)
Feb 28, 2022 OL-0228202 (340.00)
Feb 28, 2022 OL-0228202 (1,340.00)

Total outstanding checks (364,937.59)

Add (Less) Other
Feb 28, 2022 0228-01 5,081.04
Feb 27, 2022 CC0227 1,120.94
Feb 28, 2022 CC0228 4,383.07
Feb 28, 2022 CCIH0219 1,062.04
Feb 28, 2022 MARS0219 112.08

Total other 11,759.17

Unreconciled difference 0.00

Ending GL Balance 2,512,678.57



3/7/22 at 14:40:43.51 Page: 1

NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
Account Reconciliation

As of Feb 28, 2022
1015 - 1015 - COLO TRUST - GENERAL

Bank Statement Date: February 28, 2022
Filter Criteria includes: Report is printed in Detail Format.

Beginning GL Balance 18,285,595.53

Add: Cash Receipts

Less: Cash Disbursements

Add (Less) Other 554.94

Ending GL Balance 18,286,150.47

Ending Bank Balance 18,286,150.47

Add back deposits in transit

Total deposits in transit

(Less) outstanding checks

Total outstanding checks

Add (Less) Other

Total other

Unreconciled difference 0.00

Ending GL Balance 18,286,150.47



3/7/22 at 14:41:13.44 Page: 1

NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
Account Reconciliation

As of Feb 28, 2022
1019 - 1019 - COLO TRUST - 2019 BOND
Bank Statement Date: February 28, 2022

Filter Criteria includes: Report is printed in Detail Format.

Beginning GL Balance 2,615,528.01

Add: Cash Receipts

Less: Cash Disbursements

Add (Less) Other 78.24

Ending GL Balance 2,615,606.25

Ending Bank Balance 2,615,606.25

Add back deposits in transit

Total deposits in transit

(Less) outstanding checks

Total outstanding checks

Add (Less) Other

Total other

Unreconciled difference 0.00

Ending GL Balance 2,615,606.25



 

Page 1 of 12 

AMENDMENT NO. 47 

TO THE AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTING SERVICES 

 

TASK ORDER NO. 5 

COORDINATION AND DESIGN SUPPORT FOR DISTRICT PROJECTS (“MISCELLANEOUS PROJECTS”) 

 

BUDGET ALLOCATION INCREASE 

 
This AMENDMENT is made and entered into on the ________day of                            , 2022, by and between the 

North Weld County Water District (hereafter referred to as the “Client” or “District”) and Providence 

Infrastructure Consultants, Inc., (hereafter referred to as the “Consultant”).  This is an Amendment to the 

original Agreement between the same entities dated the 26th day of June 2017.  All provisions of the original 

Agreement are included by reference as part of this Amendment.  The paragraphs below describe the Scope, 

Fee, and Schedule for this Amendment. 

 

DESCRIPTION:  This is a budget allocation amendment for Task Order No. 5.  On February 25, 2022, the current 

fee allocation was 109.9% exhausted and should be increased to allow services to continue. 

 

SCOPE:  This amendment does not generally change the Scope of Task Order No. 5.  The Scopes for each 

individual Miscellaneous Project are mutually developed between the Client and the Consultant, and progress 

is discussed and documented during the O&M Meetings.  This amendment also adds scope for subconsultants 

supporting design efforts. 

 

FEE:  Fees associated with this Amendment are defined as follows.  Costs will be billed on an hourly basis plus 

expenses for the actual time required.  Subconsultant proposals for work associated with the various 

Miscellaneous Projects noted below (if any) are attached to this Amendment, as noted. 

 

AMENDMENT SUMMARY 

Item Description Cost/Fee Notes 

1 
Task Order No. 5 Budget Overage 

through February 25, 2022 
$30,354.85 

Refer to Exhibit A (attached) for a delineation 

of the current, overall budget overage – less 

pending Amendment No. 45 ($230,000.00) 

2 

Additional Fee Allocation for 

continued services under Task 

Order No. 5 

$104,599.35 N/A 

3 

Subconsultant fees associated 

with Various Miscellaneous 

Projects 

$15,045.80 

Refer to Exhibit B (attached) for a breakdown of 

subconsultants and related fees, per each 

Miscellaneous Project task 

Total for this Amendment = $150,000.00 

 

  



 

Page 2 of 12 

 

TASK ORDER SUMMARY 

Budget, per Original T.O. $30,000.00 01/29/2018 

Previous Amendments $2,870,000.00 
Sum of Previous Amendments (including pending 

Amendment No. 45) 

Proposed Amendment Total $150,000.00 per the AMENDMENT SUMMARY, above 

Proposed Total T.O. Value $3,050,000.00 including this Amendment 

 

SCHEDULE:  The anticipated completion schedule associated with this revised budget allocation varies per each 

Miscellaneous Project but is generally intended to support anticipated Consultant services through the period 

described above. 

 

IN WITNESS whereof, the duly authorized representatives of the Client and Consultant have executed this 

AMENDMENT. 

 

 

Client            Consultant 

 

NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT  PROVIDENCE INFRASTRUCTURE CONSULTANTS, INC. 

 

 

 
   

By:  Eric Reckentine  By:  Darin J. Pytlik 

(Typed Name)  (Typed Name) 

   

Title:  District Manager  Title:  Vice President 

   

Date:  Date:  03/02/2022 

 

  



 

Page 3 of 12 

AMENDMENT NO. 47:  EXHIBIT A 
 

 
  



 

Page 4 of 12 

AMENDMENT NO. 47:  EXHIBIT B 
 

 



 

Page 5 of 12 



 

Page 6 of 12 



 

Page 7 of 12 



 

Page 8 of 12 



 

Page 9 of 12 



 

Page 10 of 12 



 

Page 11 of 12 



 

Page 12 of 12 

 



2248.4204; 1201629

INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT
CONSULTING SERVICES – MASTER SERVICES

This INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT, including any and all exhibits 
attached hereto (the “Agreement”), is entered into as of the __ day of March, 2022, by and between 
NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT, a quasi-municipal corporation and political 
subdivision of the State of Colorado (the “District”), and STANTEC CONSULTING SERVICES, 
INC., a New York corporation (the “Contractor”).  The District and the Contractor are referred 
to herein individually as a “Party” and collectively as the “Parties.” 

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the District was organized pursuant to and in accordance with the provisions 
of §§ 32-1-101, et seq., C.R.S. for the purpose of constructing, financing, operating and 
maintaining certain public facilities and improvements for itself, its taxpayers, residents and users; 
and

WHEREAS, pursuant to § 32-1-1001(1)(d)(I), C.R.S., the District is empowered to enter 
into contracts and agreements affecting the affairs of the District; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to § 32-1-1001(1)(i), C.R.S., the District is empowered to appoint, 
hire and retain agents, employees, engineers and attorneys; and

WHEREAS, the District desires to engage the Contractor to perform certain services as are 
needed by the District to serve the property within and without its boundaries; and

WHEREAS, the Contractor has represented that it has the professional experience, skill 
and resources to perform the services, as set forth herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and stipulations set forth 
herein, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties hereto agree as 
follows:

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. SCOPE OF SERVICES; PERFORMANCE STANDARDS.  The Contractor shall 
perform the services described in Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this 
reference (the “Services”): (a) in a professional manner, to the satisfaction of the District, using 
the degree of skill and knowledge customarily employed by other professionals performing similar 
services; (b) within the time period and pursuant to the Scope of Services specified in said Exhibit 
A; and (c) using reasonable commercial efforts to minimize any annoyance, interference or 
disruption to the residents, tenants, occupants and invitees within the District.  Exhibit A may take 
any form, including forms which may include price and payment terms.  In the event of any conflict 
between terms set forth in the body of this Agreement and terms set forth in Exhibit A, the terms 
in the body of this Agreement shall govern.  Contractor shall have no right or authority, express or 
implied, to take any action, expend any sum, incur any obligation, or otherwise obligate the District 
in any manner whatsoever, except to the extent specifically provided in this Agreement (including 



2248.4204; 1201629 2

Exhibit A) or through other authorization expressly delegated to or authorized by the District 
through its Board of Directors.

2. TERM/RENEWAL.  This Agreement shall be effective as of the dated date hereof 
and shall terminate on the earlier to occur of: (i) termination pursuant to Section 18 hereof; (ii) 
completion of the Services; or (iii) December 31, 2022.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, unless 
terminated pursuant to subsection (i) or (ii) above, or unless the District determines not to 
appropriate funds for this Agreement for the next succeeding year, this Agreement shall 
automatically renew on January 1 of each succeeding year for an additional one (1) year term.

3. ADDITIONAL SERVICES.  The District may, in writing, request the Contractor 
provide additional services not set forth in Exhibit A.  The terms and conditions of the provision 
of such services shall be subject to the mutual agreement of the Contractor and the District pursuant 
to a written service/work order executed by an authorized representative of the District and the 
Contractor or an addendum to this Agreement.  Authorization to proceed with additional services 
shall not be given unless the District has appropriated funds sufficient to cover the additional 
compensable amount.  To the extent additional services are provided pursuant to this Section 3, 
the terms and conditions of this Agreement relating to Services shall also apply to any additional 
services rendered.

4. REPAIRS/CLAIMS.  The Contractor shall notify the District immediately of any 
and all damage caused by the Contractor to District property and that of third parties.  The 
Contractor will promptly repair or, at the District’s option, reimburse the District for the repair of 
any damage to property caused by the Contractor or its employees, agents or equipment.  In 
addition, the Contractor shall promptly notify the District of all potential claims of which it 
becomes aware.  The Contractor further agrees to take all reasonable steps to preserve all physical 
evidence and information which may be relevant to the circumstances surrounding a potential 
claim, while maintaining public safety, and to grant to the District the opportunity to review and 
inspect such evidence, including the scene of any damage or accidents.  The Contractor shall be 
responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions and programs in 
connection with the Services and shall provide all reasonable protection to prevent damage or 
injury to persons and property, including any material and equipment related to the Services, 
whether in storage on or off site, under the care, custody, or control of the Contractor or any of its 
subcontractors.

5. GENERAL PERFORMANCE STANDARDS.

a. The Contractor has by careful examination ascertained: (i) the nature and 
location of the Services; (ii) the configuration of the ground on which the Services are to be 
performed; (iii) the character, quality, and quantity of the labor, materials, equipment and facilities 
necessary to complete the Services; (iv) the general and local conditions pertaining to the Services; 
and (v) all other matters which in any way may affect the performance of the Services by the 
Contractor.  Contractor enters into this Agreement solely because of the results of such 
examination and not because of any representations pertaining to the Services or the provision 
thereof made to it by the District or any agent of the District and not contained in this Agreement.  
The Contractor represents that it has or shall acquire the capacity and the professional experience 
and skill to perform the Services and that the Services shall be performed in accordance with the 



2248.4204; 1201629 3

standards of care, skill and diligence provided by competent professionals who perform services 
of a similar nature to those specified in this Agreement.  If competent professionals find that the 
Contractor’s performance of the Services does not meet this standard, the Contractor shall, at the 
District’s request, re-perform the Services not meeting this standard without additional 
compensation.  

b. The Contractor shall use reasonable commercial efforts to perform and 
complete the Services in a timely manner.  If performance of the Services by the Contractor is 
delayed due to factors beyond the Contractor’s reasonable control, or if conditions of the scope or 
type of services are expected to change, Contractor shall give prompt notice to the District of such 
a delay or change and receive an equitable adjustment of time and/or compensation, as negotiated 
between the Parties.

c. The Services provided under this Agreement shall be adequate and 
sufficient for the intended purposes and shall be completed in a good and workmanlike manner. 

d. The Contractor agrees that it has and will continue to comply with all 
applicable Laws related to and while providing Services under this Agreement.  “Laws” means: 
(i) federal, state, county and local or municipal body or agency laws, statutes, ordinances and 
regulations; (ii) any licensing bonding, and permit requirements; (iii) any laws relating to storage, 
use or disposal of hazardous wastes, substances or materials; (iv) rules, regulations, ordinances 
and/or similar directives regarding business permits, certificates and licenses; (v) regulations and 
orders affecting safety and health, including but not limited to the Occupational Safety and Health 
Act of 1970; (vi) Wage and Hour laws, Worker Compensation laws, and immigration laws.   

e. The responsibilities and obligations of the Contractor under this Agreement 
shall not be relieved or affected in any respect by the presence of any agent, consultant, sub-
consultant or employee of the District.  Review, acceptance or approval by the District of the 
Services performed or any documents prepared by the Contractor shall not relieve the Contractor 
of any responsibility for deficiencies, omissions or errors in said Services or documents, nor shall 
it be construed to operate as a waiver of any rights under this Agreement or of any cause of action 
arising out of the performance of this Agreement.

6. MONTHLY STATUS REPORT.  The Contractor shall provide to the District, at 
the District’s request, on or before the 25th of each month, a narrative progress and status report 
describing work in progress and results achieved during the reporting period, including a 
description of the Services performed during the invoice period and the Services anticipated to be 
performed during the ensuing invoice period (“Monthly Report”). 

7. COMPENSATION AND INVOICES.

a. Compensation.  Compensation for the Services provided under this 
Agreement shall be in accordance with the compensation schedule attached hereto as Exhibit A.  
The Contractor shall be responsible for all expenses it incurs in performance of this Agreement 
and shall not be entitled to any reimbursement or compensation except as provided in Exhibit A 
of this Agreement, unless said reimbursement or compensation is approved in writing by the 
District in advance of incurring such expenses.  Any direct reimbursable costs for materials will 



2248.4204; 1201629 4

be reimbursable at the Contractor’s actual cost, provided that the Contractor shall make a 
reasonable attempt to notify the District of the estimated amount of such reimbursable costs (or 
any material adjustments thereto subsequently identified) prior to commencing the requested 
services.  Concurrent with the execution of this Agreement, the Contractor shall provide the 
District with a current completed Internal Revenue Service Form W-9 (Request for Taxpayer 
Identification Number and Certification) (“W-9”).  No payments will be made to the Contractor 
until the completed W-9 is provided.  The W-9 shall be attached hereto and incorporated herein as 
Exhibit A-1.

b. Invoices.  Invoices for the Services shall be submitted monthly, by the 10th 
of each month, during the term of this Agreement and shall contain the following information:

i. An itemized statement of the Services performed.

ii. Any other reasonable information required by the District to process 
payment of the invoice, including project and/or cost codes as provided in any applicable written 
service/work order.

The District shall be charged only for the actual time and direct costs 
incurred for the performance of the Services.  Invoices received by the District after the 10th of 
each month may be processed the following month.

8. TIME FOR PAYMENT.  Payment for the Services shall be made by the District 
within thirty (30) days of receipt of: (i) a timely, satisfactory and detailed invoice in the form 
required by Section 7; and (ii) if applicable, a reasonably satisfactory and detailed Monthly Report, 
for that portion of the Services performed and not previously billed.  The District may determine 
to waive or extend the deadline for filing the Monthly Report, or may make payment for Services 
to the Contractor notwithstanding a delay in filing the Monthly Report, upon reasonable request 
of the Contractor, if it is in the interest of the District to do so.  In the event a Board meeting is not 
scheduled in time to review payment of an invoice, the Board hereby authorizes payment for 
Services, subject to the appropriation and budget requirements under Section 27 hereof, without 
the need for additional Board approval, so long as any payment required to be made does not 
exceed the amounts appropriated for such Services as set forth in the District’s approved budget.  
Such payment shall require review and approval of each Monthly Report and invoice by two 
officers of the District.

9. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR.  The Contractor is an independent contractor 
and nothing in this Agreement shall constitute or designate the Contractor or any of its employees 
or agents as employees or agents of the District.  The Contractor shall have full power and authority 
to select the means, manner and method of performing its duties under this Agreement, without 
detailed control or direction from the District, and shall be responsible for supervising its own 
employees or subcontractors.  The District is concerned only with the results to be obtained.  The 
District shall not be obligated to secure, and shall not provide, any insurance coverage or 
employment benefits of any kind or type to or for the Contractor or its employees, sub-consultants, 
contractors, agents, or representatives, including coverage or benefits related but not limited to: 
local, state or federal income or other tax contributions, insurance contributions (e.g. FICA taxes), 
workers’ compensation, disability, injury, health or life insurance, professional liability insurance, 



2248.4204; 1201629 5

errors and omissions insurance, vacation or sick-time benefits, retirement account contributions, 
or any other form of taxes, benefits or insurance.  The Contractor shall be responsible for its safety, 
and the safety of its employees, sub-contractors, agents, and representatives.  All personnel 
furnished by the Contractor will be deemed employees or sub-contractors of the Contractor and 
will not for any purpose be considered employees or agents of the District.  The Contractor is 
not entitled to worker’s compensation benefits or unemployment insurance benefits, unless 
unemployment compensation coverage is provided by the Contractor or some other entity 
other than the District, and the Contractor is obligated to pay federal and state income taxes 
on moneys by it earned pursuant to this Agreement.  

10. EQUAL OPPORTUNITY / EMPLOYMENT ELIGIBILITY.  This Agreement is 
subject to all applicable laws and executive orders relating to equal opportunity and non-
discrimination in employment and the Contractor represents and warrants that it will not 
discriminate in its employment practices in violation of any such applicable law or executive order.

The Contractor hereby states that it does not knowingly employ or contract with 
illegal aliens and that the Contractor has participated in or has attempted to participate in the E-
Verify Program or Department Program (formerly known as the Basic Pilot Program) (as defined 
in §8-17.5-101, C.R.S.) in order to verify that it does not employ any illegal aliens.  The Contractor 
affirmatively makes the follow declarations:

a. The Contractor shall not knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien 
who will perform work under the public contract for services contemplated in this Agreement and 
will participate in the E-Verify Program or Department Program (as defined in §8-17.5-101, 
C.R.S.) in order to confirm the employment eligibility of all employees who are newly hired for 
employment to perform work under the public contract for Services contemplated in this 
Agreement.

b. The Contractor shall not knowingly enter into a contract with a 
subcontractor that fails to certify to the Contractor that the subcontractor shall not knowingly 
employ or contract with an illegal alien to perform the services contemplated in this Agreement.

c. The Contractor has confirmed the employment eligibility of all employees 
who are newly hired for employment to perform work under the public contract for services 
through participation in either the E-Verify Program or the Department Program.

d. The Contractor is prohibited from using either the E-Verify Program or the 
Department Program procedures to undertake pre-employment screening of job applicants while 
this Agreement is being performed. 

e. If the Contractor obtains actual knowledge that a subcontractor performing 
the services under this Agreement knowingly employs or contracts with an illegal alien, the 
Contractor shall be required to:

i. Notify the subcontractor and the District within three (3) days that 
the Contractor has actual knowledge that the subcontractor is employing or contracting with an 
illegal alien.



2248.4204; 1201629 6

ii. Terminate the subcontract with the subcontractor if within three (3) 
days of receiving the notice required above the subcontractor does not stop employing or 
contracting with the illegal alien; except that the Contractor shall not terminate the contract with 
the subcontractor if during such three (3) days the subcontractor provides information to establish 
that the subcontractor has not knowingly employed or contracted with an illegal alien.

f. The Contractor shall comply with any reasonable request by the Department 
of Labor and Employment made in the course of an investigation involving matters under this 
Section 10 that such Department is undertaking pursuant to the authority established in § 8-17.5-
102, C.R.S. 

g. If the Contractor violates a provision of this Agreement pursuant to which 
§ 8-17.5-102, C.R.S., applies the District may terminate this Agreement upon three (3) days written 
notice to the Contractor.  If this Agreement is so terminated, the Contractor shall be liable for 
actual and consequential damages to the District.

11. CONTRACTOR’S INSURANCE.  

a. The Contractor shall acquire and maintain, at its sole cost and expense, 
during the entire term of this Agreement, insurance coverage in the minimum amounts set forth in 
Exhibit B, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference.  A waiver of subrogation and 
rights of recovery against the District, its directors, officers, employees and agents is required for 
Commercial General Liability and Workers Compensation coverage.  The Commercial General 
Liability and Comprehensive Automobile Liability Insurance policies will be endorsed to name 
the District as an additional insured.  All coverage provided pursuant to this Agreement shall be 
written as primary policies, not contributing with and not supplemental to any coverage that the 
District may carry, and any insurance maintained by the District shall be considered excess.  The 
District shall have the right to verify or confirm, at any time, all coverage, information or 
representations contained in this Agreement.

b. Prior to commencing any work under this Agreement, the Contractor shall 
provide the District with a certificate or certificates evidencing the policies required by this 
Agreement, as well as the amounts of coverage for the respective types of coverage, which 
certificate(s) shall be attached hereto as Exhibit B-1.  If the Contractor subcontracts any portion(s) 
of the Services, said subcontractor(s) shall be required to furnish certificates evidencing statutory 
workers’ compensation insurance, comprehensive general liability insurance and automobile 
liability insurance in amounts satisfactory to the District and the Contractor; provided, however, 
that sub-contractors of the Contractor shall not be required by the District to provide coverage in 
excess of that which is required hereunder of the Contractor.  If the coverage required expires 
during the term of this Agreement, the Contractor or subcontractor shall provide replacement 
certificate(s) evidencing the continuation of the required policies.

c. The Contractor’s failure to purchase the required insurance shall not serve 
to release it from any obligations contained in this Agreement; nor shall the purchase of the 
required insurance serve to limit the Contractor’s liability under any provision in this Agreement.  
The Contractor shall be responsible for the payment of any deductibles on issued policies.



2248.4204; 1201629 7

12. CONFIDENTIALITY AND CONFLICTS. 

a. Confidentiality.  Any information deemed confidential by the District and 
given to the Contractor by the District, or developed by the Contractor as a result of the 
performance of a particular task, shall remain confidential.  In addition, the Contractor shall hold 
in strict confidence, and shall not use in competition, any information which the Contractor 
becomes aware of under or by virtue of this Agreement which the District deems confidential, or 
which the District has agreed to hold confidential, or which, if revealed to a third party, would 
reasonably be construed to be contrary to the interests of the District.  Confidential information 
shall not include, however, any information which is: (i) generally known to the public at the time 
provided to the Contractor; (ii) provided to the Contractor by a person or entity not bound by 
confidentiality to the District; or (iii) independently developed by the Contractor without use of 
the District’s confidential information.  During the performance of this Agreement, if the 
Contractor is notified that certain information is to be considered confidential, the Contractor 
agrees to enter into a confidentiality agreement in a form reasonably acceptable to the District and 
the Contractor.  The Contractor agrees that any of its employees, agents or subcontractors with 
access to any information designated thereunder as confidential information of the District shall 
agree to be bound by the terms of such confidentiality agreement.

b. Personal Identifying Information.  During the performance of this 
Agreement, the District may disclosure Personal Identifying Information to the Contractor.  
“Personal Identifying Information” means a social security number; a personal identification 
number; a password; a pass code; an official state or government-issued driver’s license or 
identification card number; a government passport number; biometric data, as defined in § 24-73-
103(1)(a), C.R.S.; an employer, student, or military identification number; or a financial 
transaction device, as defined in § 18-5-701(3), C.R.S.  In compliance with § 24-73-102, C.R.S., 
the Contractor agrees to implement and maintain reasonable security procedures and practices that 
are: (i) appropriate to the nature of the Personal Identifying Information disclosed to the 
Contractor; and (ii) reasonably designed to help protect the Personal Identifying Information from 
unauthorized access, use, modification, disclosure, or destruction.

c. Conflicts.  Prior to the execution of, and during the performance of this 
Agreement and prior to the execution of future agreements with the District, the Contractor agrees 
to notify the District of conflicts known to the Contractor that impact the Contractor’s provision 
of Services to the District.  

13. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS.  All documents produced by or on behalf of the 
Contractor prepared pursuant to this Agreement, including, but not limited to, all maps, plans, 
drawings, specifications, reports, electronic files and other documents, in whatever form, shall 
remain the property of the District under all circumstances, upon payment to the Contractor of the 
invoices representing the work by which such materials were produced.  At the District’s request 
the Contractor will provide the District with all documents produced by or on behalf of the 
Contractor pursuant to this Agreement.  The Contractor shall maintain electronic and reproducible 
copies on file of any such instruments of service involved in the Services for a period of two (2) 
years after termination of this Agreement, shall make them available for the District’s use and shall 
provide such copies to the District upon request at no cost.



2248.4204; 1201629 8

14. LIENS AND ENCUMBRANCES.  To the extent the Contractor has been paid for 
its services under this Agreement, the Contractor shall not have any right or interest in any District 
assets, or any claim or lien with respect thereto, arising out of this Agreement or the performance 
of the Services contemplated in this Agreement.  The Contractor, for itself, hereby waives and 
releases any and all statutory or common law mechanic’s, materialmen’s or other such lien claims, 
or rights to place a lien upon the District’s property or any improvements thereon in connection 
with any Services performed under or in connection with this Agreement, and the Contractor shall 
cause all permitted subcontractors, suppliers, materialmen, and others claiming by, through or 
under the Contractor to execute similar waivers prior to commencing any work or providing any 
materials in connection with the Services.  The Contractor further agrees to execute a sworn 
affidavit respecting the payment and lien releases of all subcontractors, suppliers and materialmen, 
and release of lien respecting the Services at such time or times and in such form as may be 
reasonably requested by the District.  The Contractor will provide indemnification against all such 
liens for labor performed, materials supplied or used by the Contractor and/or any other person in 
connection with the Services undertaken by the Contractor, in accordance with Section 15, below.

15. INDEMNIFICATION.  

a. The Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless (but not defend) the 
District and each of its directors, officers, contractors, and employees, (collectively, the “District 
Indemnitees”), from and against any and all losses, liabilities, actions, damages, and expenses 
(the “Claims”), including reasonable legal expenses and attorneys’ fees actually incurred, by the 
District Indemnitees to the extent caused by the negligent acts, errors or omissions, of the 
Contractor or any of its subcontractors, officers, agents or employees, in connection with this 
Agreement and/or the Contractor’s performance of the Services or work pursuant to this 
Agreement.  Notwithstanding anything else in this Agreement or otherwise to the contrary, the 
Contractor is not obligated to indemnify the District Indemnitees for the negligence of the District 
or the negligence of any other District Indemnitee, except the Contractor.  Except as otherwise 
provided by applicable law, this indemnification obligation will not be limited in any way by any 
limitation on the amount or types of damages, compensation or benefits payable by or for the 
Contractor under workers’ compensation acts, disability acts or other employee benefit acts, 
provided that in no event shall the Contractor be liable for special/consequential or punitive 
damages.

b. Insurance coverage requirements specified in this Agreement shall in no 
way lessen or limit the liability of the Contractor under the terms of this indemnification obligation.  
The Contractor shall obtain, at its own expense, any additional insurance that it deems necessary 
with respect to its obligations under this Agreement, including the indemnity obligations set forth 
in Section 15.  This defense and indemnification obligation shall survive the expiration or 
termination of this Agreement.  

c. The total amount of all claims the District may have against the Contractor 
under this Agreement or arising from the performance or non-performance of the Services under 
any theory of law, including but not limited to claims for negligence, negligent misrepresentation 
and breach of contract, shall be strictly limited to the lesser of the fees or $100,000. As the 
District’s sole and exclusive remedy under this Agreement any claim, demand or suit shall be 



2248.4204; 1201629 9

directed and/or asserted only against the Contractor and not against any of the Contractor’s 
employees, officers or directors. 

16. ASSIGNMENT.  The Contractor shall not assign this Agreement or parts thereof, 
or its respective duties, without the express written consent of the District.  Any attempted 
assignment of this Agreement in whole or in part with respect to which the District has not 
consented, in writing, shall be null and void and of no effect whatsoever.

17. SUB-CONTRACTORS.  The Contractor is solely and fully responsible to the 
District for the performance of all Services in accordance with the terms set forth in this 
Agreement, whether performed by the Contractor or a subcontractor engaged by the Contractor, 
and neither the District’s approval of any subcontractor, suppliers, or materialman, nor the failure 
of performance thereof by such persons or entities, will relieve, release, or affect in any manner 
the Contractor’s duties, liabilities or obligations under this Agreement .  The Contractor shall not 
subcontract any Services without prior written approval by the District.  The Contractor agrees 
that each and every agreement of the Contractor with any subcontractor to perform Services under 
this Agreement shall contain an indemnification provision identical to the one contained in this 
Agreement holding the District harmless for the acts of the subcontractor.  Prior to commencing 
any Services, a subcontractor shall provide evidence of insurance coverage to the District in 
accordance with the requirements of this Agreement.  The Contractor further agrees that all such 
subcontracts shall provide that they may be terminated immediately without cost or penalty upon 
termination of this Agreement, other than payment for services rendered prior to the date of any 
such termination. 

18. TERMINATION.  In addition to the termination provisions contained in Section 2, 
above, this Agreement may be terminated for convenience by the Contractor upon delivery of 
thirty (30) days prior written notice to the District and by the District by giving the Contractor 
thirty (30) days prior written notice.  Each Party may terminate this Agreement for cause at any 
time upon written notice to the other Party setting forth the cause for termination and the notified 
Party’s failure to cure the cause to the reasonable satisfaction of the Party given such notice within 
the cure period set forth in Section 19.  If this Agreement is terminated, the Contractor shall be 
paid for all the Services satisfactorily performed prior to the designated termination date, including 
reimbursable expenses due.  Said payment shall be made in the normal course of business.  Should 
either Party to this Agreement be declared bankrupt, make a general assignment for the benefit of 
creditors or commit a substantial and material breach of this Agreement in the view of the other 
Party, said other Party shall be excused from rendering or accepting any further performance under 
this Agreement.  In the event of termination of this Agreement, the Contractor shall cooperate with 
the District to ensure a timely and efficient transition of all work and work product to the District 
or its designees.  All time, fees and costs associated with such transition shall not be billed by the 
Contractor to the District.  

19. DEFAULT.  If either Party fails to perform in accordance with the terms, covenants 
and conditions of this Agreement, or is otherwise in default of any of the terms of this Agreement, 
the non-defaulting party shall deliver written notice to the defaulting party of the default, at the 
address specified in Section 20 below, and the defaulting party will have ten (10) days from and 
after receipt of the notice to cure the default.  If the default is not of a type which can be cured 
within such ten (10)-day period and the defaulting party gives written notice to the non-defaulting 



2248.4204; 1201629 10

party within such ten (10)-day period that it is actively and diligently pursuing a cure, the 
defaulting party will have a reasonable period of time given the nature of the default following the 
end of the ten (10)-day period to cure the default, provided that the defaulting party is at all times 
within the additional time period actively and diligently pursuing the cure.  If any default under 
this Agreement is not cured as described above, the non-defaulting party will, in addition to any 
other legal or equitable remedy, have the right to terminate this Agreement and enforce the 
defaulting party’s obligations pursuant to this Agreement by an action for injunction or specific 
performance.

20. NOTICES.  Any notice or communication required under this Agreement must be 
in writing, and may be given personally, sent via nationally recognized overnight carrier service, 
or by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested.  If given by registered or certified mail, 
the same will be deemed to have been given and received on the first to occur of: (i) actual receipt 
by any of the addressees designated below as the party to whom notices are to be sent; or (ii) three 
days after a registered or certified letter containing such notice, properly addressed, with postage 
prepaid, is deposited in the United States mail.  If personally delivered or sent via nationally 
recognized overnight carrier service, a notice will be deemed to have been given and received on 
the first to occur of: (i) one business day after being deposited with a nationally recognized 
overnight air courier service; or (ii) delivery to the party to whom it is addressed.  Any party hereto 
may at any time, by giving written notice to the other party hereto as provided in this Section 20 
of this Agreement, designate additional persons to whom notices or communications will be given, 
and designate any other address in substitution of the address to which such notice or 
communication will be given.  Such notices or communications will be given to the parties at their 
addresses set forth below:

District: North Weld County Water District
P.O. Box 56
32825 Weld County Road 39
Lucerne, CO 80646
Attention: Eric Reckentine, District Manager
Phone: (970) 395-0097
Email:       ericr@nwcwd.org 

With a Copy to: WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON
2154 E. Commons Ave., Suite 2000
Centennial, CO  80122
Attention: Zachary P. White
Phone: (303) 858-1800
E-mail: zwhite@wbapc.com

Contractor: Stantec Consulting Services, Inc.
3325 S. Timberline Road, Suite 150
Fort Collins, CO 80525
Attention: Pamela Massaro
Phone: (970) 893-4807



2248.4204; 1201629 11

Email: pamela.massaro@stantec.com 

21. AUDITS.  The District shall have the right to audit, with reasonable notice,  any of 
the Contractor’s books and records solely as are necessary to substantiate any invoices and 
payments under this Agreement (including, but not limited to, receipts, time sheets, payroll and 
personnel records) and the Contractor agrees to maintain adequate books and records for such 
purposes during the term of this Agreement and for a period of two (2) years after termination of 
this Agreement and to make the same available to the District at all reasonable times and for so 
long thereafter as there may remain any unresolved question or dispute regarding any item 
pertaining thereto. 

22. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement 
between the Parties hereto relating to the Services, and sets forth the rights, duties, and obligations 
of each to the other as of this date, and hereby supersedes any and all prior negotiations, 
representations, agreements or arrangements of any kind with respect to the Services, whether 
written or oral.  Any prior agreements, promises, negotiations, or representations not expressly set 
forth in this Agreement are of no force and effect.  This Agreement may not be modified except 
by a writing executed by both the Contractor and the District.  

23. BINDING AGREEMENT.  This Agreement shall inure to and be binding on the 
heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns of the Parties hereto.

24. NO WAIVER.  No waiver of any of the provisions of this Agreement shall be 
deemed to constitute a waiver of any other of the provisions of this Agreement, nor shall such 
waiver constitute a continuing waiver unless otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, nor 
shall the waiver of any default be deemed a waiver of any subsequent default.

25. GOVERNING LAW.  

a. Venue.  Venue for all actions arising from this Agreement shall be in the 
District Court in and for the county in which the District is located.  The Parties expressly and 
irrevocably waive any objections or rights which may affect venue of any such action, including, 
but not limited to, forum non-conveniens or otherwise.  At the District’s request, the Contractor 
shall carry on its duties and obligations under this Agreement during any legal proceedings and 
the District shall continue to pay for the Services performed under this Agreement until and unless 
this Agreement is otherwise terminated. 

b. Choice of Law. Colorado law shall apply to any dispute, without regard to 
conflict of law principles that would result in the application of any law other than the law of the State 
of Colorado.

c. Litigation.  At the District’s request, the Contractor will consent to being 
joined in litigation between the District and third parties, but such consent shall not be construed 
as an admission of fault or liability.  The Contractor shall not be responsible for delays in the 
performance of the Services caused by factors beyond its reasonable control including delays 
caused by Act of God, accidents, failure of any governmental or other regulatory authority to act 



2248.4204; 1201629 12

in a timely manner or failure of the District to furnish timely information or to approve or 
disapprove of Contractor’s Services in a timely manner. 

26. GOOD FAITH OF PARTIES.  In the performance of this Agreement, or in 
considering any requested approval, acceptance, consent, or extension of time, the Parties agree 
that each will act in good faith and will not act unreasonably, arbitrarily, capriciously, or 
unreasonably withhold, condition, or delay any approval, acceptance, consent, or extension of time 
required or requested pursuant to this Agreement.

27. SUBJECT TO ANNUAL APPROPRIATION AND BUDGET.  The District does 
not intend hereby to create a multiple-fiscal year direct or indirect debt or other financial obligation 
whatsoever.  The Contractor expressly understands and agrees that the District’s obligations under 
this Agreement shall extend only to monies appropriated for the purposes of this Agreement by 
the Board and shall not constitute a mandatory charge, requirement or liability in any ensuing fiscal 
year beyond the then-current fiscal year.  No provision of this Agreement shall be construed or 
interpreted as a delegation of governmental powers by the District, or as creating a multiple-fiscal 
year direct or indirect debt or other financial obligation whatsoever of the District or statutory debt 
limitation, including, without limitation, Article X, Section 20 or Article XI, Section 6 of the 
Constitution of the State of Colorado.  No provision of this Agreement shall be construed to pledge 
or to create a lien on any class or source of District funds.  The District’s obligations under this 
Agreement exist subject to annual budgeting and appropriations, and shall remain subject to the 
same for the entire term of this Agreement.

28. GOVERNMENTAL IMMUNITY.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed 
to waive, limit, or otherwise modify, in whole or in part, any governmental immunity that may be 
available by law to the District, its respective officials, employees, contractors, or agents, or any 
other person acting on behalf of the District and, in particular, governmental immunity afforded or 
available to the District pursuant to the Colorado Governmental Immunity Act, §§ 24-10-101, et 
seq., C.R.S. 

29. NEGOTIATED PROVISIONS.  This Agreement shall not be construed more 
strictly against one Party than against the other merely by virtue of the fact that it may have been 
prepared by counsel for one of the Parties, it being acknowledged that each Party has contributed 
to the preparation of this Agreement.

30. SEVERABILITY.  If any portion of this Agreement is declared by any court of 
competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, such decision shall not affect the 
validity of any other portion of this Agreement which shall remain in full force and effect, the 
intention being that such portions are severable.  In addition, in lieu of such void or unenforceable 
provision, there shall automatically be added as part of this Agreement a provision similar in terms 
to such illegal, invalid or unenforceable provision so that the resulting reformed provision is legal, 
valid and enforceable.

31. NO THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES.  It is expressly understood and agreed that 
enforcement of the terms and conditions of this Agreement, and all rights of action relating to such 
enforcement, shall be strictly reserved to the Parties and nothing contained in this Agreement shall 
give or allow any such claim or right of action by any other third party on such Agreement.  It is 



2248.4204; 1201629 13

the express intention of the Parties that any person other than Parties receiving services or benefits 
under this Agreement shall be deemed to be an incidental beneficiary only.

32. OPEN RECORDS.  The Parties understand that all material provided or produced 
under this Agreement may be subject to the Colorado Open Records Act, §§ 24-72-202, et seq., 
C.R.S. 

33. STANDARD OF CARE.  In providing Services under this Agreement, the 
Contractor shall perform in a manner consistent with that degree of care and skill ordinarily 
exercised by members of the same profession currently practicing under similar circumstances at 
the same time.

34. TAX EXEMPT STATUS.  The District is exempt from Colorado state sales and 
use taxes.  Accordingly, taxes from which the District is exempt shall not be included in any 
invoices submitted to the District.  The District shall, upon request, furnish Contractor with a copy 
of its certificate of tax exemption.  Contractor and subcontractors shall apply to the Colorado 
Department of Revenue, Sales Tax Division, for an Exemption Certificate and purchase materials 
tax free.  The Contractor and subcontractors shall be liable for exempt taxes paid due to failure to 
apply for Exemption Certificates or for failure to use said certificate.

35. COUNTERPART EXECUTION.  This Agreement may be executed in several 
counterparts, each of which may be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute 
one and the same instrument.  Executed copies hereof may be delivered by facsimile or email of a 
PDF document, and, upon receipt, shall be deemed originals and binding upon the signatories 
hereto, and shall have the full force and effect of the original for all purposes, including the rules 
of evidence applicable to court proceedings.

[Signature pages follow.]



District’s Signature Page to Independent Contractor Agreement for Consulting Services 
(Master Services) with Stantec Consulting Services, Inc.

2248.4204; 1201629 14

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement on the date first 
above written.  By the signature of its representative below, each Party affirms that it has taken all 
necessary action to authorize said representative to execute this Agreement.

DISTRICT:
NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER 
DISTRICT, a quasi-municipal corporation and 
political subdivision of the State of Colorado

Officer of the District

ATTEST:

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON
Attorneys at Law

General Counsel for the District





2248.4204; 1147865 A-1

EXHIBIT A

INITIAL SCOPE OF SERVICES / COMPENSATION SCHEDULE

PROJECT/TASK ONE:

NWCWD’s ArcGIS Hydraulic model (InfoWater) - Engineering Support Services in 2022-23 
project 
 

Budget of NWCWD for ArcGIS Hydraulic model (InfoWater) - Engineering Support 
Services in 2022: Not to exceed (NTE) $50,000

Scope of work described below: Perform the professional services that include but not be 
Limited to the Following: 

1) Identification of a project manager, who will serve as a contact person (David 
Wiggins). 

2) Provide day-to-day consultation as requested by the NWCWD Manager. Attend 
necessary meetings.

3) Review background information. 
4) Attend meetings with Leslie to become familiar with InfoWater. 
5) Complete InfoWater Calibration and model sensitivity runs. For current approved 

infrastructure/service area.
 
 
PROJECT/TASK TWO:

NWCWD for “on call” Engineering Support Services in 2022-23 project (DEVELOPMENT 
REVIEWS)
 

Budget of NWCWD for “on call” Engineering Support Services in 2022: Not to exceed 
(NTE) $50,000

Scope of work described below: Perform the professional services that include but not be 
Limited to the Following: 

1) Identification of a project manager, who will serve as a contact person (David 
Wiggins). 

2) Provide day-to-day consultation as requested by the NWCWD Manager. Attend 
necessary meetings. 

3) Assist in reviewing NWCWD design criteria and standards for proposed 
developments projects. (Potable water distribution system document dated 
February 8, 2021)

4) Provide engineering assistance and customary civil and engineering design 
services on various projects, if requested. 

5) Provide necessary InfoWater modeling services on various projects, when 
requested. 

6) Prepare reports, if requested. 



2248.4204; 1201629 2

7) Provide construction engineering observations as requested by the NWCWD. 

PROJECT/TASK THREE:

NWCWD for REGIONAL MASTER PLANNING Engineering Support Services in 2022-23 
project
 

Budget of NWCWD for REGIONAL MASTER PLANNING Engineering Support Services 
in 2022-23: Not to exceed (NTE) $50,000

Scope of work described below: Perform the professional services that include but not be 
Limited to the Following: 

1) Identification of a project manager, who will serve as a contact person (David 
Wiggins). 

2) Provide day-to-day consultation as requested by the NWCWD Manager. Attend 
necessary meetings. 

3) Develop Alternatives for various municipal growth scenarios. Develop a Capital 
Improvement Plan (CIP) for two alternatives and estimate of probable 
construction cost (OPCC). 

4) Develop a cap for water delivery for each municipality, given existing 
infrastructure capacity limitations. 

5) Provide necessary InfoWater modeling services.
6) Prepare reports, if requested. 



2248.4204; 1147865 B-1-1

EXHIBIT A-1

CONTRACTOR’S COMPLETED W-9



Form    W-9
(Rev. October 2018)
Department of the Treasury  
Internal Revenue Service 

Request for Taxpayer 
Identification Number and Certification

▶ Go to www.irs.gov/FormW9 for instructions and the latest information.

Give Form to the  
requester. Do not 
send to the IRS.

P
ri

nt
 o

r 
ty

p
e.

 
S

ee
 S

p
ec

ifi
c 

In
st

ru
ct

io
ns

 o
n 

p
ag

e 
3.

1  Name (as shown on your income tax return). Name is required on this line; do not leave this line blank.

2  Business name/disregarded entity name, if different from above

3  Check appropriate box for federal tax classification of the person whose name is entered on line 1. Check only one of the 
following seven boxes. 

Individual/sole proprietor or 
single-member LLC

 C Corporation S Corporation Partnership Trust/estate

Limited liability company. Enter the tax classification (C=C corporation, S=S corporation, P=Partnership) ▶ 

Note: Check the appropriate box in the line above for the tax classification of the single-member owner.  Do not check 
LLC if the LLC is classified as a single-member LLC that is disregarded from the owner unless the owner of the LLC is 
another LLC that is not disregarded from the owner for U.S. federal tax purposes. Otherwise, a single-member LLC that 
is disregarded from the owner should check the appropriate box for the tax classification of its owner.

Other (see instructions) ▶ 

4  Exemptions (codes apply only to 
certain entities, not individuals; see 
instructions on page 3):

Exempt payee code (if any)

Exemption from FATCA reporting

 code (if any)

(Applies to accounts maintained outside the U.S.)

5  Address (number, street, and apt. or suite no.) See instructions.

6  City, state, and ZIP code

Requester’s name and address (optional)

7  List account number(s) here (optional)

Part I Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN)
Enter your TIN in the appropriate box. The TIN provided must match the name given on line 1 to avoid 
backup withholding. For individuals, this is generally your social security number (SSN). However, for a 
resident alien, sole proprietor, or disregarded entity, see the instructions for Part I, later. For other 
entities, it is your employer identification number (EIN). If you do not have a number, see How to get a 
TIN, later.

Note: If the account is in more than one name, see the instructions for line 1. Also see What Name and 
Number To Give the Requester for guidelines on whose number to enter.

Social security number

– –

or
Employer identification number 

–

Part II Certification
Under penalties of perjury, I certify that:

1. The number shown on this form is my correct taxpayer identification number (or I am waiting for a number to be issued to me); and
2. I am not subject to backup withholding because: (a) I am exempt from backup withholding, or (b) I have not been notified by the Internal Revenue

Service (IRS) that I am subject to backup withholding as a result of a failure to report all interest or dividends, or (c) the IRS has notified me that I am
no longer subject to backup withholding; and

3. I am a U.S. citizen or other U.S. person (defined below); and

4. The FATCA code(s) entered on this form (if any) indicating that I am exempt from FATCA reporting is correct.

Certification instructions. You must cross out item 2 above if you have been notified by the IRS that you are currently subject to backup withholding because 
you have failed to report all interest and dividends on your tax return. For real estate transactions, item 2 does not apply. For mortgage interest paid, 
acquisition or abandonment of secured property, cancellation of debt, contributions to an individual retirement arrangement (IRA), and generally, payments 
other than interest and dividends, you are not required to sign the certification, but you must provide your correct TIN. See the instructions for Part II, later.

Sign 
Here

Signature of 
U.S. person ▶ Date ▶

General Instructions
Section references are to the Internal Revenue Code unless otherwise 
noted.

Future developments. For the latest information about developments 
related to Form W-9 and its instructions, such as legislation enacted 
after they were published, go to www.irs.gov/FormW9.

Purpose of Form
An individual or entity (Form W-9 requester) who is required to file an 
information return with the IRS must obtain your correct taxpayer 
identification number (TIN) which may be your social security number 
(SSN), individual taxpayer identification number (ITIN), adoption 
taxpayer identification number (ATIN), or employer identification number 
(EIN), to report on an information return the amount paid to you, or other 
amount reportable on an information return. Examples of information 
returns include, but are not limited to, the following.

• Form 1099-INT (interest earned or paid)

• Form 1099-DIV (dividends, including those from stocks or mutual
funds)

• Form 1099-MISC (various types of income, prizes, awards, or gross
proceeds)

• Form 1099-B (stock or mutual fund sales and certain other
transactions by brokers)

• Form 1099-S (proceeds from real estate transactions)

• Form 1099-K (merchant card and third party network transactions)

• Form 1098 (home mortgage interest), 1098-E (student loan interest),
1098-T (tuition)

• Form 1099-C (canceled debt)

• Form 1099-A (acquisition or abandonment of secured property)

Use Form W-9 only if you are a U.S. person (including a resident
alien), to provide your correct TIN. 

If you do not return Form W-9 to the requester with a TIN, you might 
be subject to backup withholding. See What is backup withholding, 
later.

Cat. No. 10231X Form W-9 (Rev. 10-2018)

03/03/2022



2248.4204; 1147865 B-1

EXHIBIT B

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

NOTE: All insurance required and provided hereunder shall also comply with the provisions of 
Section 11 of this Agreement.

1. Standard Worker’s Compensation and Employer’s Liability Insurance covering all 
employees of Contractor involved with the performance of the Services, with policy 
amounts and coverage in compliance with the laws of the jurisdiction in which the Services 
will be performed.

2. Commercial General Liability Insurance with minimum limits of liability of not less than 
$2,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury and property damage liability; $2,000,000 
designated location, general aggregate; and $1,000,000 umbrella.  Such insurance will 
include coverage for contractual liability, personal injury and broad form property damage, 
and shall include all major divisions of coverage and be on a comprehensive basis 
including, but not limited to:  

a. premises operations;
b. personal injury liability without employment exclusion;
c. limited contractual;
d. broad form property damages, including completed operations;
e. medical payments;
f. products and completed operations;
g. independent consultants coverage;
h. coverage inclusive of construction means, methods, techniques, sequences, and 

procedures, employed in the capacity of a construction consultant; and

This policy must include coverage extensions to cover the indemnification obligations 
contained in this Agreement to the extent caused by or arising out of bodily injury or 
property damage.

3. Comprehensive Automobile Liability Insurance covering all owned, non-owned and hired 
automobiles used in connection with the performance of the Services, with limits of 
liability of not less than $1,000,000 combined single limit bodily injury and property 
damage.  This policy must include coverage extensions to cover the indemnification 
obligations contained in this Agreement to the extent caused by or arising out of 
bodily injury or property damage.

4. Any other insurance commonly used by contractors for services of the type to be performed 
pursuant to this Agreement.

5. Professional liability insurance in the amount of $2,000,000.00 each occurrence.



2248.4204; 1147865 B-1-1

EXHIBIT B-1

CERTIFICATE(S) OF INSURANCE



Form    W-9
(Rev. October 2018)
Department of the Treasury  
Internal Revenue Service 

Request for Taxpayer 
Identification Number and Certification

▶ Go to www.irs.gov/FormW9 for instructions and the latest information.

Give Form to the  
requester. Do not 
send to the IRS.

P
ri

nt
 o

r 
ty

p
e.

 
S

ee
 S

p
ec

ifi
c 

In
st

ru
ct

io
ns

 o
n 

p
ag

e 
3.

1  Name (as shown on your income tax return). Name is required on this line; do not leave this line blank.

2  Business name/disregarded entity name, if different from above

3  Check appropriate box for federal tax classification of the person whose name is entered on line 1. Check only one of the 
following seven boxes. 

Individual/sole proprietor or 
single-member LLC

 C Corporation S Corporation Partnership Trust/estate

Limited liability company. Enter the tax classification (C=C corporation, S=S corporation, P=Partnership) ▶ 

Note: Check the appropriate box in the line above for the tax classification of the single-member owner.  Do not check 
LLC if the LLC is classified as a single-member LLC that is disregarded from the owner unless the owner of the LLC is 
another LLC that is not disregarded from the owner for U.S. federal tax purposes. Otherwise, a single-member LLC that 
is disregarded from the owner should check the appropriate box for the tax classification of its owner.

Other (see instructions) ▶

4  Exemptions (codes apply only to 
certain entities, not individuals; see 
instructions on page 3):

Exempt payee code (if any)

Exemption from FATCA reporting

 code (if any)

(Applies to accounts maintained outside the U.S.)

5  Address (number, street, and apt. or suite no.) See instructions.

6  City, state, and ZIP code

Requester’s name and address (optional)

7  List account number(s) here (optional)

Part I Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN)
Enter your TIN in the appropriate box. The TIN provided must match the name given on line 1 to avoid 
backup withholding. For individuals, this is generally your social security number (SSN). However, for a 
resident alien, sole proprietor, or disregarded entity, see the instructions for Part I, later. For other 
entities, it is your employer identification number (EIN). If you do not have a number, see How to get a 
TIN, later.

Note: If the account is in more than one name, see the instructions for line 1. Also see What Name and 
Number To Give the Requester for guidelines on whose number to enter.

Social security number

– –

or
Employer identification number 

–

Part II Certification
Under penalties of perjury, I certify that:

1. The number shown on this form is my correct taxpayer identification number (or I am waiting for a number to be issued to me); and
2. I am not subject to backup withholding because: (a) I am exempt from backup withholding, or (b) I have not been notified by the Internal Revenue

Service (IRS) that I am subject to backup withholding as a result of a failure to report all interest or dividends, or (c) the IRS has notified me that I am
no longer subject to backup withholding; and

3. I am a U.S. citizen or other U.S. person (defined below); and

4. The FATCA code(s) entered on this form (if any) indicating that I am exempt from FATCA reporting is correct.

Certification instructions. You must cross out item 2 above if you have been notified by the IRS that you are currently subject to backup withholding because 
you have failed to report all interest and dividends on your tax return. For real estate transactions, item 2 does not apply. For mortgage interest paid, 
acquisition or abandonment of secured property, cancellation of debt, contributions to an individual retirement arrangement (IRA), and generally, payments 
other than interest and dividends, you are not required to sign the certification, but you must provide your correct TIN. See the instructions for Part II, later.

Sign 
Here

Signature of 
U.S. person ▶ Date ▶

General Instructions
Section references are to the Internal Revenue Code unless otherwise 
noted.

Future developments. For the latest information about developments 
related to Form W-9 and its instructions, such as legislation enacted 
after they were published, go to www.irs.gov/FormW9.

Purpose of Form
An individual or entity (Form W-9 requester) who is required to file an 
information return with the IRS must obtain your correct taxpayer 
identification number (TIN) which may be your social security number 
(SSN), individual taxpayer identification number (ITIN), adoption 
taxpayer identification number (ATIN), or employer identification number 
(EIN), to report on an information return the amount paid to you, or other 
amount reportable on an information return. Examples of information 
returns include, but are not limited to, the following.

• Form 1099-INT (interest earned or paid)

• Form 1099-DIV (dividends, including those from stocks or mutual
funds)

• Form 1099-MISC (various types of income, prizes, awards, or gross
proceeds)

• Form 1099-B (stock or mutual fund sales and certain other
transactions by brokers)

• Form 1099-S (proceeds from real estate transactions)

• Form 1099-K (merchant card and third party network transactions)

• Form 1098 (home mortgage interest), 1098-E (student loan interest),
1098-T (tuition)

• Form 1099-C (canceled debt)

• Form 1099-A (acquisition or abandonment of secured property)

Use Form W-9 only if you are a U.S. person (including a resident
alien), to provide your correct TIN. 

If you do not return Form W-9 to the requester with a TIN, you might 
be subject to backup withholding. See What is backup withholding, 
later.

Cat. No. 10231X Form W-9 (Rev. 10-2018)

Stantec Consulting Services Inc. 

X

5

N/A

(crsp) 3325 S Timberline Rd, Ste 150  /  (remit to) 13980 Collections Center Dr.

Fort Collins, CO  80225                  /  Chicago, IL  60693

1   1        2   1   6    7   1   7   0

           Dawn Sanborn 11/18/2019



2248.4204; 1147865 C-1

EXHIBIT C 

CERTIFICATE OF GOOD STANDING WITH COLORADO SECRETARY OF STATE



Proposed Meter at 35490 CR 61
1 W / 1 P.I.

Meter 1236 has 7 W / 7 P.I.
They are requesting to 

move 5 W / 5 P.I. to Meter 
5933 and 1 W / 1 P.I. to a 
proposed Meter located at 

35490 CR 61.

The proposed Meter at 
35490 CR 61 would require

a line extension.

Meter 1236
1 W / 1 P.I. remaining 

after transfer

Meter 5933
Add 5 W / 5 P.I.

Longs Peak Dairy
Water/P.I. Transfer Request





cc:  Project File 
 
  

 

 

   
 

                       JUST COMPENSATION  
                       WAIVER VALUATION 

WV North Weld County Water District 

Project:  Line 1 Replacement  

Parcel No.: PE-LCR-3-3 and TE-LCR-3-3 
Owner Name: Teal Creek Homeowners Association,  
a Colorado nonprofit corporation 
Location: Highway 14 and LCR 1, Fort Collins, CO 

 The subject property is located at Highway 14 and Larimer County Road 1, Fort Collins, CO in Larimer County (Subject). The Subject is 
owned by Teal Creek Homeowners Association (the Owner). It is legally described as Outlots A through D, inclusive, Teal Creek P.U.D., 
according to the recorded plat therefore being located in Section 13, Township 7 North, Range 68 West of the 6th P.M., in Bargain and 
Sale Deed dated November 19, 2002, recorded May 22, 2003, at reception number 20030062949. The Subject is identified by the Larimer 
County Assessor as Parcel No. 87130106001. Per assessor records, the Subject is 305,356 square feet ± (7.01 acres) in size, irregular in 
shape, and zoned Residential HOA Common. The Subject is accessed from Larimer County Road 1. No vertical improvements identified 
that would be affected by the construction of the Line 1 Replacement Project (Project). To facilitate construction of the Project, the North 
Weld County Water District requires the acquisition of one (1) Permanent Easement, PE-LCR-3-3 and one (1) Temporary Construction 
Easement, TE-LCR-3-3. 
 
Parcel PE-LCR-3-3, a permanent easement, contains an area of 1.463 acres ±, and is rectangular in shape. PE-LCR-3-3 is more particularly 
described and depicted on the attached exhibits. PE-LCR-3-3 is required for construction, maintenance and operation of a forty-eight-inch 
(48”) ductile iron potable water pipeline. The surface of PE-LCR-3-3 consists of native grass. 
 
Parcel TE-LCR-3-3, a temporary construction easement, contains an area of 1.987 acres ±, and is rectangular in shape. TE-LCR-3-3 is more 
particularly described and depicted on the attached exhibits. TE-LCR-3-3 will be acquired for a term of one (1) year, commencing upon the 
start of construction activities within TE-LCR-3-3. TE-LCR-3-3 is required for construction and access.  The surface of TE-LCR-3-3 
consists of native grass.  The surface will be restored to a condition similar to what exists prior to construction except as modified to 
accommodate project improvements. No personal property requiring relocation was identified during the site inspection.    
 

 
 
 

Land/Site Value Part Taken 
Parcel or Easement # (except TE) 

 
Area SF or 

AC 

 
$/Unit 

 
Easement Burden % 

 

PE-LCR-3-3 1.463 AC $ 27,000 /AC 50% $ 19,750.50 
Total Land $ 19,750.50 

Improvements Value Part Taken: 
Describe Below 

Contributory Value:   
Per Unit Basis or Lump Sum Basis 

 

  $0.00 
+ Total Improvements  $0.00 

  
TE 

 
Purpose 

 
Area SF or 

 

 
$/Unit 

% rate of 
return / duration  

TE-LCR-3-3 Construction of Water Pipeline 1.987 AC $ 27,000 /AC 10% / annum x 1 year $ 5,364.90 
 
Damages (Cost to Cure).  Describe and quantify:       
 
 

 
 +Total Temporary Easements and Damages (Cost to Cure)  $ 5,364.90 

= Total Compensation Estimate = $ 25,150.00 
(Rounded)  

 Has the owner or designated representative accompanied the District’s representative during inspection of the property? 
  Yes       Date: December 10, 2021 
   No       Describe efforts made:   

 Signed by: Richard B. Pittenridge, TRS Corp.  Date:      

Approved by: North Weld County Water District Date:      











          

 

Waiver Valuation Research Data 
North Weld County Water District  

 

Parcel #: PE-LCR-3-3 and TE-LCR-3-3 Project: Line 1 Replacement  Prepared by:  
Richard B. Pittenridge 

Address: LCR 1 & Highway 14, Fort Collins, CO Owner: Teal Creek HOA Date: 2/14/2022 
 Property Sale Date Size/Acre Price Price/Unit Adjustment Value Proximity to 

Subject Parcel Data Source 

 APN Date Size $ $ # $ Distance Information 

S-1 87114-40-015 & 
87144-40-016 4/14/2021 177.29/ac $3,975,000 $22,421/ac +10% Time  $24,663/ac ½ mile S Smith Valuation 

S-2 0807-06-400-030 & 
0807-06-100-032 1/29/2021 178.43/ac $5,208,000 $23,583/ac +10% Time $25,941/ac 5 miles SE Smith Valuation 

S-3 0807-122-00-016 1/29/2021 144.73/ac $2,993,000 $20,678/ac +10% Time $24,814/ac 10 miles SE Smith Valuation 
S-4 0807-081-00-001 11/5/2021 253.16/ac $10,000,000 $35,501/ac -15% superior $30,218/ac 6 miles SE Smith Valuation 
Subject use: The Subject is zoned PUD unimproved HOA and is currently vacant land with native vegetation.  
 
Subject Site Size: Is a 7.01 acre out lot being part of 199.76 acres combined paper subdivision per the Teal Creek P.U.D. plat and Larimer County Assessor. 
 
Acquisition Type/Size: The project requires the acquisition of one permanent easement (PE-LCR-3-3) containing approximately 1.463 acres and one temporary easement (TE-
LCR-3-3) containing approximately 1.987 acres. 
 
Comparable Sales: Market data research is provided by Smith Valuation Consultants, LLC, along with information from Larimer and Weld County Assessor’s public records 
website. 
 
Proposed use of Acquisitions: PE-LCR-3-3 is needed to construct, operate, and maintain a forty-eight-inch (48”) ductile iron potable water pipeline and TE-LCR-3-3 is needed to 
facilitate construction of the water pipeline. 
 
Notes/Comments: Sales of paper subdivisions are hard to find therefore we used vacant land sales of similar size as the subject. This was based on discussions with Smith 
Valuations and their analysis of market conditions. All of the sales are similar and size and could be subdivided and are with the general vicinity of the subject. These sales 
represent properties that could be subdivided within similar location to development. Sales 1, 2, & 3 need some type of adjustment due to the date of sale. Sale 4 is superior to the 
subject and required a negative adjustment. Reviewing the information provided, all sales are a good representation and would indicate the value to be between $25,000 to $30,000. 
Since the subject is located off Highway 14 frontage not far from I-25, a value towards the higher end of the range seems appropriate.  
 
Based on the foregoing information, I have surmised the probable value for unimproved land (as if vacant) is:       
 
 

$27,000.00 / AC 



Sales Information
Click a Sale Date to recorded document details, or Reception No. to view the document (registration 
required).

2019 Value Information
Abstract Code/Description Value Type Actual Value Assessed Value Net Acres Net Sq Ft

1116 Res pud unim HOA common Land $500 $145 7.01 305,356

Totals: $500 $145 7.01 305,356

CO 

CO 

Parcel Number:
Schedule Number:
Account Number:

Tax District: ?

Property Tax Year:  2020
Current Mill Levy:

Property Address:

Owner Name & Address:
, 

Sale Date 
(info)

Reception No. 
(doc)

Sale 
Price

Deed Type

 2002-11-
19

 20030062949 $0 Bargain And 
Sale Deed

No building improvement information is currently available for this property.

Property Attributes & Descriptions
Attribute Attribute Description

Neg Econ Infl Railroad LC 

Utilities Electricity 

* Land Attribute Standard includes: Natural Gas, Public Water, Public Sewer, Electricity, Public Streets, Sidewalks, Streetlights 
and Curb & Gutter

Click a year to view "Tax Due Dates" and "Where My Taxes Go" in the 
right column.

Year Total Tax 
Liability

Property 
Balance

Owner 
Tax 

Liability

State Tax 
Liability

Total 
Actual 
Value

Total 
Assessed 

Value

2003 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0 $0

Property Tax 
Status

Tax Liens No

Treasurer's Deed No

Tax Deferred No

Delinquent Prior Year(s) 
Taxes

No

General Information

Building Improvements

Property Tax History

Page 1 of 2Property Search | Larimer County

2/17/2020https://www.larimer.org/assessor/search



Larimer County Web Map

This map was created by Larimer County GIS using data from multiple sources for
informal purposes only. This map may not reflect recent updates prior to the date of

printing. Larimer County makes no warranty or guarantee concerning the
completeness, accuracy, or reliability of the content represented.Date Prepared: 2/14/2020 10:10:49 AM

Miles0.1 0.1

4,800

0

Legend

1:

Notes

 Scale

Subdivisions

Tax Parcels

PLSS Township and Range

PLSS Sections

PLSS Quarter Sections

Railroads

Major Road System

Road System

Lakes and Ponds

Major Rivers and Streams

Rivers and Streams

County Boundary

Rocky Mountain National Park

Incorporated Areas

City or Town

County

State

Federal

Other









Summary Table 
 

LAND COMPARABLE SUMMARY 

 
Sale 
No. 

 
Grantor/ 
Grantee 

 
Sale Date/ 

Reception No. 

 
 

Sale Price 

 
Size in 
Acres 

Sale Price 
per Acre/ 
Land Only 

1 Serratoga Falls, LLC/ 

Kitchel Lake F3 LLC 

04-14-21/ 

20210038668 

$3,975,000 177.290 $22,421/ 

$22,421 

2 Kenneth D. Knievel and Karen M. Knievel, et al./ 

Serfer Ventures, LLC 

01-29-21/ 

4677839 

$5,208,000 178.430 $29,188/ 

$23,583 

3 Tailholt Land & Water Investments, Inc./ 

Kenneth Donald Knievel and Karen M. Knievel 

01-29-21/ 

4677821 

$2,993,000 144.737 $20,678/ 

$20,678 

4 WINTAC INVESTMENTS LLC/ 

PRAIRIE SONG DEVELOPMENT LLC  

11-05-21/ 

4774576 

$10,000,000 253.160 $39,501/ 

$35,551 

  



Comparable Sales Map 
 

 
  



Detailed Sale Write Ups 
 

LAND SALE NO. 1 
 

 
Assessor Aerial 

 
SALE DATE: April 14, 2021 
GRANTOR: Serratoga Falls, LLC 
GRANTEE: Kitchel Lake F3 LLC 
RECORDING DATA: Reception No. 20210038668, Larimer County 
SALE PRICE: $3,975,000 
ASSESSOR NUMBER: 87144-40-015 and 87144-40-016 
ADDRESS/LOCATION: North side of East Prospect Road west of LCR 3, Timnath, CO 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: Tracts O and P, Serratoga Falls 2nd Filing, Larimer County, CO 
ZONING: R-2 (Single Family Residential), Town of Timnath 
UTILITIES: All utilities extended to site 
IMPROVEMENTS: None 
TOPOGRAPHY: Relatively level 
SHAPE: Irregular 
LAND AREA: 177.290 acres 
  
SALE PRICE/UNIT: $22,421 per acre (overall and land only) 
FINANCING/TERMS: Cash 
 
REMARKS: This property is located at the northwest quadrant of East Prospect Road and South County 
Road 3 in the Town of Timnath, Larimer County, Colorado.  Serratoga Falls is being built out by several 
builders including Richmond Homes.  Timnath Middle-High School was completed in 2021 just to the west 
of this site on Prospect Road.  These tracts in the easterly portion of the subdivision will be subdivided into 
single-family residential lots.  There were no water rights included in the sale price. 



LAND SALE NO. 2 
 

 
Assessor Aerial 

 
SALE DATE: January 29, 2021 
GRANTOR: Kenneth Donald Knievel and Karen M. Knievel, et al. 
GRANTEE: Serfer Ventures, LLC 
RECORDING DATA: Reception No. 4677839, Weld County 
SALE PRICE: $5,208,000 
ASSESSOR NUMBER: 0807-06-400-030 and 0807-06-100-032 
ADDRESS/LOCATION: 6776 County Road 74, Windsor, CO 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: Part of Section 6, T6N, R67W of the 6th P.M., Weld County, CO 
ZONING: RMU-1 (Residential Mixed Use One) 
UTILITIES: All utilities in right of way 
IMPROVEMENTS: A 1,290 square foot single family residence built in 1961, several 

outbuildings constructed in 1920 through 1973 
TOPOGRAPHY: Gentle slope 
SHAPE: Rectangular 
LAND AREA: 178.430 acres 
  
SALE PRICE/UNIT: $29,188 per acre (overall) $23,583 per acre (land only) 
FINANCING/TERMS: Adams Bank & Trust financed $4,426,800 
  
REMARKS: Property is annexed into the Town of Windsor and had been under contract for nearly two years.  
The sale included two shares of Windsor Reservoir and Canal Company, four shares Larimer and Weld 
Irrigation Company, one share of Larimer and Weld Reservoir Company, and six shares of Lake Lee. No 
separate allocation was made to these native water rights, which are not accepted for potable use.  
However, historic allocations indicate support for nearly $1 million in value for this portfolio of native shares. 
The spring fed pond provided additional irrigation water. The older farmstead improvements were occupied 
by a hand of the owner.  This purchase was an assemblage of land by the adjacent tree farm that ships trees 
regionally to commercial clients. 



LAND SALE NO. 3 
 

 
Assessor Aerial 

 
SALE DATE: January 29, 2021 
GRANTOR: Tailholt Land & Water Investments, Inc. 
GRANTEE: Kenneth Donald Knievel and Karen M. Knievel 
RECORDING DATA: Reception No. 4677821, Weld County 
SALE PRICE: $2,993,000 
ASSESSOR NUMBER: 0807-122-00-016 
ADDRESS/LOCATION: Southeast of WCRs 72 and 23 at 11210 County Road 72, Severance, CO 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: Lot B, Recorded Exemption 0807-12-2-RE-1571, Part of the W1/2 of the NW 

1/4 of Section 12, T6N, R67 
ZONING: Suburban Perimeter, Severance 
UTILITIES: All utilities nearby 
IMPROVEMENTS: None 
TOPOGRAPHY: Gentle slope 
SHAPE: Irregular 
LAND AREA: 144.737 acres 
  
SALE PRICE/UNIT: $20,678 per acre (overall and land only) 
FINANCING/TERMS: Cash 
 
REMARKS: This property is located at the southeast quadrant of Weld County Road 72 and Weld County 
Road 23 and is annexed into the Town of Severance.  The new Severance high school is now completed 
across WCR 23 to the west. 



LAND SALE NO. 4 
 

 
Assessor Aerial 

 
SALE DATE: November 05, 2021 
GRANTOR: WINTAC INVESTMENTS LLC 
GRANTEE: PRAIRIE SONG DEVELOPMENT LLC 
RECORDING DATA: Reception No. 4774576, Weld County 
SALE PRICE: $10,000,000 
ASSESSOR NUMBER: 0807-081-00-001 
ADDRESS/LOCATION: 34751 Highway 247, Windsor, CO 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: Lot B Recorded Exemption 0807-08-01-Re-4528 Part of the E1/2 of Section 8 

T6N, R67W of the 6th P.M., 
ZONING: RMU, Windsor 
UTILITIES: All utilities in rights of way 
IMPROVEMENTS: None 
TOPOGRAPHY: Gentle slope 
SHAPE: Irregular 
LAND AREA: 253.160 acres 
  
SALE PRICE/UNIT: $39,501 per acre (Overall), $35,551 (land only) 
FINANCING/TERMS: Cash 
 
REMARKS: This master planned community, Tacincala, is well-situated in the northern portion of Windsor.  
All utilities are available in the rights of way. A metropolitan district has been created that will reimburse the 
development.  Native water rights included 24 shares of Cache la Poudre Reservoir, 8 shares of Lake Canal 
Ditch Company, and Lake Canal Reservoir CO. and are suitable for a portion of a non-potable system.  
Overall, the shares are estimated to have contributed nearly $1 million, based on analysis of early water 
rights. 

 



PE-LCR-3-3 and TE-LCR-3-3 
Teal Creek Homeowners Association 

Page 1 of 4 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

Looking west from Weld County 
Road 13 - field with native 
grass. Contractor to reseed. 

 

 

Looking East - field with native 
grass. Contractor to reseed. 

 

Looking East - field with native 
grass. Contractor to reseed. 

 



PE-LCR-3-3 and TE-LCR-3-3 
Teal Creek Homeowners Association 

Page 2 of 4 
 

 

 

          
     
     
     
     
     
          
          
          
          
          
          
          
          

        
        
        
        
        
        
        
        
        
        
        

          
          
          
          
          
          
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
  

  

Looking East – contractor to 
remove and replace fence as 
necessary and in-kind. 

Northwest corner of the 
property. Field access from 
State Highway 14 and City of 
Thornton Property. 

Contractor to remove and 
replace concrete ditch as 
necessary and in-kind. 

Looking south from the northwest 
corner of the property. Field access 
from State Highway 14 and City of 
Thornton Property. 

Contractor to remove and replace 
concrete ditch as necessary and in-
kind. 



PE-LCR-3-3 and TE-LCR-3-3 
Teal Creek Homeowners Association 

Page 3 of 4 
 

 

  Looking east from the north portion of 
the field. 

Contractor to protect diversion 
structure in place. 

 

Looking south from the north portion of 
the field. 

Contractor to protect diversion 
structure in place. 

 

Looking south from the Highway 14 
14. 

Contractor to protect diversion 
structure in place. 

 



PE-LCR-3-3 and TE-LCR-3-3 
Teal Creek Homeowners Association 

Page 4 of 4 
 

 

 Looking north from east end of 
property. 

Contractor to level out dirt piles 
located within the easement areas. 

Looking north at where Teal Creek 
crosses onto property from northside 
of Highway 14. 

Contactor to restabilize the channel 
and replace riprap if disturbed by 
construction activities.  

Looking south at Teal Creel from 
Highway 14. 

Contactor to restabilize the channel 
and replace riprap if disturbed by 
construction activities.  

 

































































































































































2248.4200; 1198698 

FIRST ADDENDUM 
TO 

INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT 
(Backflow Prevention and Cross Control Contamination Services) 

     
  
 This FIRST ADDENDUM TO THE INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT 
(Backflow Prevention and Cross Control Contamination Services) (the “First Addendum”) is 
entered into and shall become effective as of the 14th day of March, 2022, by and between the 
NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT, a quasi-municipal corporation and political 
subdivision of the State of Colorado (the “District”), and RAMEY ENVIRONMENTAL 
COMPLIANCE, INC., a Colorado corporation (the “Contractor”), collectively referred to herein 
as the “Parties.” 
 

RECITALS: 
 
 WHEREAS, the Parties entered into an Independent Contractor Agreement on July 12, 
2021 (the “Agreement”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Agreement sets forth a Scope of Services and a Compensation Schedule 
in Exhibit A of the Agreement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Parties desire to revise the Compensation Schedule to reflect 2022 costs. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants contained 
herein and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby 
acknowledged, the Parties covenant and agree as follows: 
 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS: 
 

1. COMPENSATION SCHEDULE.  The Parties hereby repeal and replace the 
Compensation Schedule as set forth in Exhibit A of the Agreement with the compensation schedule 
set forth herein as Exhibit A-1, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference.  
 

2. PRIOR PROVISIONS EFFECTIVE.  Except as specifically amended hereby, all 
terms and provisions of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. 
 

3. COUNTERPART EXECUTION.  This First Addendum may be executed in 
several counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, and all of which together shall 
constitute one and the same instrument. 
 

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank.] 



2248.4200; 1198698 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this First Addendum to be duly 
executed and delivered by their respective officers thereunto duly authorized as of the date first 
above written. 
 

NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER 
DISTRICT, a quasi-municipal corporation 
and political subdivision of the State of 
Colorado 
 
 
 
By: ________________________________ 
       Officer of the District 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
________________________________ 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON 
Attorneys at Law 
 
 
 
________________________________ 
General Counsel to the District 
 
 

RAMEY ENVIRONMENTAL 
COMPLIANCE, INC., a Colorado 
corporation 
 
 
 

               
             By:        
        Its:        
 
 
 
 



2248.4200; 1198698 
 

EXHIBIT A-1 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 

 
Operations Pricing 2022  

 
Pricing for Services:    
   
Bio Solids Report     $ 424.00 (paperwork only) 
Annual Reports     $ 424.00 (paperwork only) 
Consumer Confidence Reports   $ 110.00 - $140.00 depending on report 
Collection System Flow Monitoring   $ 190.00 per 24 hours per meter 
Equipment Rental     in concordance with provided quote 
Mileage      Prevailing Internal Revenue Rate 
 
Operator Services: 
 
Base rate ORC service (Contract)  $ 360.00 per month per class  
Administration     $ 67.00 per hour  
Other ORC services     in concordance with review 
ORC Services Only (Non-Contract)  $ 1,000.00 upon review 
 
Facility Operator    $ 78.00 per hour 
Lead Operator     $ 90.00 per hour  
Additional Overtime Rate    $ 120.00 per hour per operator 
Management Services/Industrial   $ 117.00 per hour (class “A”) 
Mechanic & Maintenance Service  $ 110.00 per hour + mileage 
 
Consulting      $ 157.00 per hour 
Locates      $ 33.00 - $179.00 per locate 
Grease Traps      $ 63.00 each 
Sewer Tap Inspections   $ 94.00 each 
 
Back Flow Testing     $ 78.00 per hour 
Back Flow Paperwork & reporting  $ 90.00 per hour 
Back Flow Surveys    $ 105.00 each  
 
Time Sensitive Lab Delivery    $ 67.00 per hour + mileage 
TV Video Inspection     $ 252.00 per hour + mileage 
Vac/Jet Truck Services    $ 268.00 per hour + mileage 
Easement Jet/Vac Services    $ 387.00 per hour + mileage 
Confined Space Entry    $ 313.00 per hour 
Rate per foot     in concordance with provided quote 
 
Emergency Call – Out    $ 170.00 per hour + mileage + any additional 

services required. 
 
Equipment Services Division  (In concordance with provided quote.) 
Service Tech                $ 112.00 per hour per service tech + mileage 
Emergency Rate     $ 170.00 per hour per service tech + mileage 
Shop Rate     $ 99.00   
 
 
**All fees are estimated prior to services being performed. Some rates may change in contingency with quoted projects** 













1 

2248.0007; 1205025 

RESOLUTION NO. 20220314-01 

 

RESOLUTION 

OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF  

NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT 

 

ADOPTING A NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT COMMERCIAL 

DROUGHT POLICY 

     

 

WHEREAS, the North Weld County Water District (the “District”) was organized pursuant 

to §§ 32-1-101 et seq., C.R.S. (the “Special District Act”), as amended, and is a quasi-municipal 

corporation and political subdivision of the State of Colorado; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to § 32-1-1001(1)(h), C.R.S., the Board of Directors of the District 

(the “Board”) is empowered with the management, control, and supervision of all the business and 

affairs of the District; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to § 32-1-1001(1)(m), C.R.S., the Board is authorized to adopt, 

amend, and enforce bylaws and rules and regulations not in conflict with the constitution and laws 

of Colorado for carrying on the business, objects, and affairs of the Board and the District; and 

WHEREAS, the District has engaged Williams and Weiss to study the District’s water 

system and water resources in the event the District experiences a drought; and  

WHEREAS, Williams and Weiss has presented a drought analysis which revealed 

deficiencies in the District’s water portfolio in the case of a 100 year drought; and 

WHEREAS, Williams and Weiss recommended a formula for determining on an annual 

basis whether drought conditions exist in the District, and if so, what stage of drought exists; and 

WHEREAS, Williams and Weiss recommended the District adopt a policy allowing for 

flow restrictions and use of additional water resources in drought situations; and 

WHEREAS, the Board finds that the adoption of this North Weld County Water District 

Commercial Drought Policy is in the best interest of the public health, safety, and welfare within the 

District. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 

DISTRICT AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Adoption. The Board hereby adopts the North Weld County Water District 

Commercial Drought Policy (the “Policy”), attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit A. 



2 

2248.0007; 1205025 

2. Authorization. The Board hereby directs the District Manager, as may be necessary, 

to implement and otherwise oversee compliance with the Policy. 

3. Amendments. The District expressly reserves the right to amend, revise, redact, 

and/or repeal this Resolution and the Policy in whole or in part, from time to time, in order to 

further the purpose of carrying on the business, objects, and affairs of the District.  

4. Effective Date. This Resolution and the Policy shall be effective immediately and 

shall remain in full force and effect until such time as such processes is repealed by the Board.   

5. Severability. If any term or provision of the Policy are found to be invalid or 

unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction or by operation of any applicable law, such 

invalid or unenforceable term or provision shall not affect the validity of the Policy as a whole but 

shall be severed from the Policy, leaving the remaining terms or provisions in full force and effect.  

 

[Remainder of the page intentionally left blank. Signature page to follow.]



2248.0007; 1205025 

ADOPTED THIS 14TH DAY OF MARCH, 2022. 

 

NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT, a 

quasi-municipal corporation and political 

subdivision of the State of Colorado  

 

             

President 

ATTEST: 

 

      

Secretary  

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON 

Attorneys at Law 

 

 

       

General Counsel to the District 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

Signature page to Resolution Adopting a North Weld County Water District Commercial Drought 

Policy 



 

 

EXHIBIT A 

NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT  

COMMERCIAL DROUGHT POLICY 

I. Commercial Drought Policy:  The District hereby establishes that in the event of a drought, 

as may be determined by the Board (the “Drought”), the District may flow control commercial 

users to their actual water allocations under any applicable water service or other water 

delivery agreement between the District and the customer.   

 

II. Declaration of Drought:  The Board shall have the authority to declare stage of Drought 

and the duration during which the Water Restrictions shall apply.  In order to determine 

whether a Drought exists and to declare the stage of Drought, the Board will make a water 

supply declaration on or before May 1st of each year. Determination of water supply will 

be guided by the proposed water supply formula:  

 

The Board will declare the water supply as either Adequate, Stage 1 Drought, Stage 2 

Drought, or Stage 3 drought, correlating to water supply ratios of: 

Stage 1 Drought: (1 to 0.9) 

Stage 2 Drought: (0.89 to 0.8) 

Stage 3 Drought: (less than 0.8)  

III. Under Allocated Commercial Users:  In the event of a Drought, commercial customers who 

are flow controlled due to under allocation shall be permitted to bring additional water 

resources to the District.  During a Drought, in addition to any additional water dedications 

proposed pursuant to the District’s rules and regulations or water dedication polities, 

commercial users shall be permitted to make use of groundwater sources to supplement 

supply, or to dedicate leased water to the District, in order to continue receiving service from 

the District.   

 

IV. Enforcement:  The Board hereby directs the District Manager, as may be necessary, to 

implement and oversee compliance with this Policy in accordance with any rules and 

regulations of the District which may be in existence now or adopted in the future, 



 

 

 

including the imposition of fees, surcharges, penalties, and fines imposed by the District, 

as may be amended from time to time. 



1 

2248.0007; 1165035 

RESOLUTION NO. 20220314-02 

 

RESOLUTION 

OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF  

NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT 

 

ADOPTING A NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT RESIDENTIAL 

DROUGHT POLICY 

     

 

WHEREAS, the North Weld County Water District (the “District”) was organized pursuant 

to §§ 32-1-101 et seq., C.R.S. (the “Special District Act”), as amended, and is a quasi-municipal 

corporation and political subdivision of the State of Colorado; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to § 32-1-1001(1)(h), C.R.S., the Board of Directors of the District 

(the “Board”) is empowered with the management, control, and supervision of all the business and 

affairs of the District; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to § 32-1-1001(1)(m), C.R.S., the Board is authorized to adopt, 

amend, and enforce bylaws and rules and regulations not in conflict with the constitution and laws 

of Colorado for carrying on the business, objects, and affairs of the Board and the District; and 

WHEREAS, the District has engaged Williams and Weiss to study the District’s water 

system and water resources in the event the District experiences a drought; and  

WHEREAS, Williams and Weiss has presented a drought analysis which revealed 

deficiencies in the District’s water portfolio in the case of a 100 year drought; and 

WHEREAS, Williams and Weiss recommended a formula for determining on an annual 

basis whether drought conditions exist in the District, and if so, what stage of drought exists; and 

WHEREAS, Williams and Weiss recommended the District adopt a policy including 

certain residential watering restrictions in drought situations; and 

WHEREAS, the Board finds that the adoption of this North Weld County Water District 

Residential Drought Policy is in the best interest of the public health, safety, and welfare within the 

District. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 

DISTRICT AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Adoption. The Board hereby adopts the North Weld County Water District 

Residential Drought Policy (the “Policy”), attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit A. 



2 

2248.0007; 1165035 

2. Authorization. The Board hereby directs the District Manager, as may be necessary, 

to implement and otherwise oversee compliance with the Policy. 

3. Amendments. The District expressly reserves the right to amend, revise, redact, 

and/or repeal this Resolution and the Policy in whole or in part, from time to time, in order to 

further the purpose of carrying on the business, objects, and affairs of the District.  

4. Effective Date. This Resolution and the Policy shall be effective immediately and 

shall remain in full force and effect until such time as such processes is repealed by the Board.   

5. Severability. If any term or provision of the Policy are found to be invalid or 

unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction or by operation of any applicable law, such 

invalid or unenforceable term or provision shall not affect the validity of the Policy as a whole but 

shall be severed from the Policy, leaving the remaining terms or provisions in full force and effect.  

 

[Remainder of the page intentionally left blank. Signature page to follow.]



2248.0007; 1165035 

ADOPTED THIS 14TH DAY OF MARCH, 2022. 

 

NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT, a 

quasi-municipal corporation and political 

subdivision of the State of Colorado  

 

             

President 

ATTEST: 

 

      

Secretary  

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON 

Attorneys at Law 

 

 

       

General Counsel to the District 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

Signature page to Resolution Adopting a North Weld County Water District Residential Drought 

Policy 



 

 

EXHIBIT A 

NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT  

RESIDENTIAL DROUGHT POLICY 

I. Residential Drought Policy:  The District hereby establishes that in the event of a drought, 

as may be determined by the Board (the “Drought”), the following residential outdoor water 

restrictions (the “Water Restrictions”) attached hereto as Exhibit A, shall be in effect for all 

residential properties within the District for the period of Drought.  The Board shall have the 

authority to declare the stage of Drought, and the duration during which Water Restrictions 

shall apply. 

 

II. Declaration of Drought:  The Board shall have the authority to declare stage of Drought 

and the duration during which the Water Restrictions shall apply.  In order to determine 

whether a Drought exists and to declare the stage of Drought, the Board will make a water 

supply declaration on or before May 1st of each year. Determination of water supply will 

be guided by the proposed water supply formula:  

 

The Board will declare the water supply as either Adequate, Stage 1 Drought, Stage 2 

Drought, or Stage 3 drought, correlating to water supply ratios of: 

Stage 1 Drought: (1 to 0.9) 

Stage 2 Drought: (0.89 to 0.8) 

Stage 3 Drought: (less than 0.8)  

III. Enforcement:  The Board hereby directs the District Manager, as may be necessary, to 

implement and oversee compliance with this Policy in accordance with any rules and 

regulations of the District which may be in existence now or adopted in the future, 

including the imposition of fees, surcharges, penalties, and fines imposed by the District, 

as may be amended from time to time. 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

EXHIBIT A 

RESIDENTIAL WATERING RESTRICTIONS 

 Stage1:  Low Stage 2:  Medium Stage 3:  High 

Landscape water usage 

Lawn watering Target 1” per week for 

turf 

Target 0.75” per week 

for turf 

No watering 

Watering hours No watering between 

10 a.m. and 6 p.m. 

No watering between 10 

a.m. and 6 p.m. 

No watering 

Number of watering 

days per week 

Residential even 

address:  Thursday and 

Sunday;  

Residential odd 

address:  Wednesday 

and Saturday; 

Commercial:  Tuesday 

and Friday 

Residential even address:   

Sunday only; 

Residential odd address:  

Saturday;  

Commercial:  Friday 

No watering 

Trees Same as lawn watering 

under sprinkler 

systems; 

Watering by hand, drip 

system, or deep root 

fork unrestricted 

Same as lawn watering 

under sprinkler systems; 

Watering by hand, drip 

system, or deep root fork 

unrestricted 

Watering by hand, drip 

system, or deep root 

fork unrestricted 

Food production Same as lawn watering 

under sprinkler 

systems; 

Watering by hand or by 

drip system 

unrestricted 

Same as lawn watering 

under sprinkler systems; 

Watering by hand or by 

drip system unrestricted 

Watering by hand, drip 

system unrestricted 

Other landscapes Same as lawn watering 

under sprinkler 

systems; 

Same as lawn watering 

under sprinkler systems; 

Watering by hand, drip 

system unrestricted 



 

 

 

Watering by hand or by 

drip system 

unrestricted 

Watering by hand or by 

drip system unrestricted 

Non-landscape water usage 

Car washing Unrestricted with a 

shut-off nozzle 

Not allowed from May to 

August 

Not allowed 

Spraying impervious 

surfaces 

Only for essential 

power washing 

Only for essential power 

washing 

Only for essential power 

washing 

Construction dust 

control 

Unrestricted Unrestricted Unrestricted 

Street sweeping Unrestricted Essential sweeping only Essential sweeping of 

arterials and collectors 

Hydrant flushing 

and testing 

As approved by 

NWCWD Manager 

As approved by NWCWD 

Manager 

As approved by NWCWD 

Manager 

Swimming pools Unrestricted Unrestricted if filled 

before date other 

restrictions are 

implemented; no filling 

of empty pools after 

restrictions are 

implemented 

Unrestricted if filled 

before date other 

restrictions are 

implemented; no filling 

of empty pools after 

restrictions are 

implemented 

Exceptions 

New lawns, sod and 

seed 

Unrestricted September through April 

installation only, 

unrestricted;  

No installation or 

watering 

Medical hardship or 

religious objection 

Water on two selected 

days; no watering on 

Monday between 10 

a.m. and 6 p.m. 

Water on one selected 

day; no watering on 

Monday between 10 

a.m. and 6 p.m. 

No watering 

Well or raw water    

 



 

2248.0007; 1204935  

 

RESOLUTION NO. 20220314-03 

 

RESOLUTION 

OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 

NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT 

 

ADOPTING A COMMERCIAL FLOW CONTROL POLICY 

     

 

WHEREAS, the North Weld County Water District (the “District”) was organized pursuant 

to §§ 32-1-101 et seq., C.R.S. (the “Special District Act”), as amended, and is a quasi-municipal 

corporation and political subdivision of the State of Colorado; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to § 32-1-1001(1)(h), C.R.S., the Board of Directors of the District 

(the “Board”) is empowered with the management, control, and supervision of all the business and 

affairs of the District; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to § 32-1-1001(1)(m), C.R.S., the Board is authorized to adopt, 

amend, and enforce bylaws and rules and regulations not in conflict with the constitution and laws 

of Colorado for carrying on the business, objects, and affairs of the Board and the District; and 

WHEREAS, the District has found that certain commercial users are annually using more 

water than is allocated to such customers under water service or similar water deliver agreements; 

and  

WHEREAS, in order to help control overuse by commercial users, the Board of the District 

previously approved the installation of flow control devices on commercial users in the District; 

and  

WHEREAS, the District desires to use the flow control devices to regulate the amount of 

water used by commercial users; and  

WHEREAS, the regulation of water usage by commercial customers will allow the District 

to adequately model water usage in the District which helps to efficiently address infrastructure 

and capacity concerns; and 

WHREEAS, the Board desires to adopt a policy for setting the flow control devices; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Board finds that the adoption of this Commercial Flow Control Policy to be 

in the best interest of the public health, safety, and welfare within the District.  

 



 

2248.0007; 1204935  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 

DISTRICT AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Adoption. The Board hereby adopts the Commercial Flow Control Policy (the 

“Policy”), attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit A. 

2. Authorization. The Board hereby directs the District Manager, as may be necessary, 

to implement and otherwise oversee compliance with the policy set forth herein. 

3. Amendments. The District expressly reserves the right to amend, revise, redact, 

and/or repeal this Resolution in whole or in part, from time to time, in order to further the purpose 

of carrying on the business, objects, and affairs of the District.  

4. Conflict.  If any part of the Regulation is in conflict or inconsistent with any other 

District policy, procedure, or practice currently in effect, this Regulation shall trump such other 

District policy, procedure or practice.  

5. Severability. If any term or provision of the Regulation is found to be invalid or 

unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction or by operation of any applicable law, such 

invalid or unenforceable term or provision shall not affect the validity of the Regulation as a whole 

but shall be severed from the Regulation, leaving the remaining terms or provisions in full force 

and effect.  

6. Effective Date. This Regulation shall be effective immediately and shall remain in 

full force and effect until such time as such policy is repealed by the Board.   

 

[Remainder of the page intentionally left blank. Signature page follows.] 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

2248.0007; 1204935 

3 

ADOPTED THIS 14th DAY OF MARCH, 2022. 

 

NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT, a 

quasi-municipal corporation and political 

subdivision of the State of Colorado  

 

             

President 

ATTEST: 

 

      

Secretary  

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON 

Attorneys at Law 

 

 

       

General Counsel to the District 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

Signature page to Resolution Adopting a Commercial Flow Control Policy 



 

2248.0007; 1204935 

4 

EXHIBIT A 

NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT 

COMMERCIAL FLOW CONTROL POLICY 

I. Commercial Flow Control Policy. The North Weld County Water District (the “District”) 

hereby establishes a policy to install flow control devices and flow control commercial 

users within the District.  Starting in, and including the year 2022, the District will install 

flow control devices and will flow control all commercial users to their peak 2021 flows 

(the “Flow Limit”), as indicated in the District’s water usage records for each commercial 

user.  If a commercial user exceeds the individual Flow Limit established by the District, 

the District may shut-off water service to such customer.  In the event of a water services 

shut-off, such user may dedicate addition water to the District for their use.  Any water 

proposed for dedication to the District shall comply with any rules and regulations of the 

District or water dedication policy of the District. 

II. Enforcement:  The Board hereby directs the District Manager, as may be necessary, to 

implement and oversee compliance with this Policy in accordance with any rules and 

regulations of the District which may be in existence now or adopted in the future. 

 



 

2248.0007; 1205144  

 

RESOLUTION NO. 20220314-04 

 

RESOLUTION 

OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 

NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT 

 

ADOPTING A RESIDENTIAL PLANT INVESTMENT POLICY 

     

 

WHEREAS, the North Weld County Water District (the “District”) was organized pursuant 

to §§ 32-1-101 et seq., C.R.S. (the “Special District Act”), as amended, and is a quasi-municipal 

corporation and political subdivision of the State of Colorado; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to § 32-1-1001(1)(h), C.R.S., the Board of Directors of the District 

(the “Board”) is empowered with the management, control, and supervision of all the business and 

affairs of the District; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to § 32-1-1001(1)(m), C.R.S., the Board is authorized to adopt, 

amend, and enforce bylaws and rules and regulations not in conflict with the constitution and laws 

of Colorado for carrying on the business, objects, and affairs of the Board and the District; and 

WHEREAS, the District imposes and collects a one-time contribution per single-family 

equivalent unit (the “Plant Investment” or “Plant Investment Fee”) to be used for capital 

investment in regional facilities and capital investment in transmission facilities; and  

WHEREAS, the District has historically allowed residential property owners to purchasing 

½ taps and ¾ taps to purchase Plant Investments at a rate of  ½ or  ¾ the full Plant Investment Fee 

charge by the District; and 

WHREAS, the Board desires to adopt a policy to requiring all customers purchasing water 

taps to pay the full Plant Investment Fee charged by the District regardless if the customer is 

purchasing a ½ or ¾ water tap; and 

WHEREAS, the Board finds that the adoption of this Residential Plant Investment Policy to 

be in the best interest of the public health, safety, and welfare within the District.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 

DISTRICT AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Adoption. The Board hereby adopts the Residential Plant Investment Policy (the 

“Policy”), attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit A. 



 

2248.0007; 1205144  

 

2. Authorization. The Board hereby directs the District Manager, as may be necessary, 

to implement and otherwise oversee compliance with the policy set forth herein. 

3. Amendments. The District expressly reserves the right to amend, revise, redact, 

and/or repeal this Resolution in whole or in part, from time to time, in order to further the purpose 

of carrying on the business, objects, and affairs of the District.  

4. Conflict.  If any part of the Regulation is in conflict or inconsistent with any other 

District policy, procedure, or practice currently in effect, this Regulation shall trump such other 

District policy, procedure or practice.  

5. Severability. If any term or provision of the Regulation is found to be invalid or 

unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction or by operation of any applicable law, such 

invalid or unenforceable term or provision shall not affect the validity of the Regulation as a whole 

but shall be severed from the Regulation, leaving the remaining terms or provisions in full force 

and effect.  

6. Effective Date. This Regulation shall be effective immediately and shall remain in 

full force and effect until such time as such policy is repealed by the Board.   

 

[Remainder of the page intentionally left blank. Signature page follows.] 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

2248.0007; 1205144 

3 

ADOPTED THIS 14th DAY OF MARCH, 2022. 

 

NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT, a 

quasi-municipal corporation and political 

subdivision of the State of Colorado  

 

             

President 

ATTEST: 

 

      

Secretary  

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON 

Attorneys at Law 

 

 

       

General Counsel to the District 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

Signature page to Resolution Adopting a Residential Plant Investment Policy 



 

2248.0007; 1205144 

4 

EXHIBIT A 

NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT 

RESIDENTIAL PLANT POLICY 

I. Residential Plant Policy. The North Weld County Water District (the “District”) hereby 

establishes a policy to require all residential customers seeking to purchase a residential 

water tap from the District to pay the full rate of Plant Investment Fee established by the 

District, (as may be amended form time to time), regardless of whether the customer is 

purchasing a ½, ¾ or full tap from the District. 

II. Enforcement:  The Board hereby directs the District Manager, as may be necessary, to 

implement and oversee compliance with this Policy in accordance with any rules and 

regulations of the District which may be in existence now or adopted in the future. 

 



HAYASHI & MACSALKA, LLC 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

1650 38TH STREET 
SUITE 103 WEST 

BOULDER, COLORADO 80301 
________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
WILLIAM P. HAYASHI        Tel:  303-443-3100 
MARY LYNN MACSALKA        Fax:  303-443-7835 

MARSHALL KEITH MARTIN        www.h-mlaw.net 

 

March 4, 2022 

 

North Weld County Water District 

Board of Directors 

32825 CR 39 

Lucerne, CO  80646 

Via Email Only:  genes@nwcwd.org; scottc@nwcwd.org; ronb@nwcwd.org; 

   bradc@nwcwd.org; tads@nwcwd.org  

 

 

Re: Request for Variance from Tap Sale Moratorium – Town of Severance 

 

Dear Board of Directors: 

 

 Please be advised that Hayashi & Macsalka, LLC, serves as legal counsel for the Town of 

Severance (“Town”). On behalf of the Town, we respectfully submit this request for a variance 

from the North Weld County Water District’s (“District”) moratorium on the sale of plant 

investments (“Moratorium”). 

 

Background 

   

 On October 26, 2021, the District imposed the Mortarium until at least December 13, 2021. 

Shortly after, the Town was forced to impose its own moratorium on the issuance of building 

permits for all residential development within its territorial limits due to the District’s Moratorium.  

On December 13, 2021, the District extended its Moratorium to May 9, 2022.  On February 14, 

2022, the District adopted Resolution No. 20220214-01, partially lifting the Moratorium with 

respect to Zones 1, 2, 7 and 7B (as indicated on a pressure zone map created by District staff) after 

determining the District’s water system had sufficient capacity to meet current and future service 

demands within those four pressure zones. The Town is centrally located within pressure Zone 1; 

however, it is unclear whether Resolution No. 20220214-01 excludes municipal wholesale 

customers within Zone 1, such as the Town, from any opportunity to purchase plant investments 

from the District pursuant to the new “Tap Sale Criteria Policy.”  Because the District lifted its 

Moratorium in zones outside of the Town’s water service area, on February 22, 2022, the Town 

narrowed its moratorium on the issuance of building permits to apply only to properties within the 

Town’s water service area.  

 

 

 

 



 

 

 Variance Request 

 

 As you are aware, the District and the Town have entered into an Amended and Restated 

Water Service Agreement dated March 9, 2019, as amended by that certain First Amendment to 

Amended and Restated Water Service Agreement, dated October 25, 2019 (collectively, the 

“Water Service Agreement”), which generally speaking outlines the rights, duties, and obligations 

of the District and Town regarding the Town’s purchase of plant investment taps from the District 

and the District’s obligation to provide and deliver treated, potable water to the Town’s potable 

water storage and distribution system (“Town System”) through two master meters (“Delivery 

Points”). 

 

 The Water Service Agreement confers upon the Town the right to use the District System 

upstream of the Delivery Points to treat and deliver to the Delivery Points a defined annual and 

daily peak demand capacity (or flow) of water based upon 940 plant investment taps (“Water Flow 

Requirement”), for the operation of the Town System downstream of the Delivery Points and, 

ultimately, the furnishing of potable water service by the Town to customers within the Town 

Service Area. 

 

 In the event the Town’s demand exceeds the existing Water Flow Requirement, the Water 

Service Agreement not only obligates the Town to purchase additional plant investment taps from 

the District sufficient to meet the Town’s demand, but also obligates the District to sell to the Town 

such additional plant investment taps, and to furnish water to the Town at the Delivery Points, 

according to the new Water Flow Requirement allowed under the total taps purchased. 

 

 For the remainder of fiscal year 2021, the Town had anticipated issuing building permits 

that would will result in the construction of a total of 25 new single-family dwellings. Presently, 

the Town System serves approximately 2,595 existing single-family dwellings. Moreover, the 

Town has two, fully-entitled single-family residential developments located entirely within the 

Town System’s service area—Tailholt and Hunter’s Crossing—waiting on a total of 350 building 

permits to be issued from the Town.  

 

 Starting as far back as October 2020, the Town has informed the District’s Manager, Eric 

Reckentine, that the current Water Flow Requirement is insufficient to meet peak flow demands 

for existing Town customers during summer months, after the Town exceeded the Water Flow 

Requirement on several occasions.  Since that time (over a year ago) and prior to the District 

imposing the Moratorium, the Town has repeatedly submitted to Mr. Reckentine requests to 

purchase additional plant investment taps from the District, not only to protect service levels for 

existing customers but also to allow the Town to meet the anticipated needs of new customer 

demand generated by the Tailholt and Hunter’s Crossing residential developments, respectively. 

  

 Without any additional plant investment taps immediately available for purchase from the 

District due to the District’s breach of the Water Service Agreement and, now, the District’s 

Moratorium, the Town System cannot deliver now or in the foreseeable future any amount of 

additional water to the Delivery Points beyond the current Water Flow Requirement, which 

presently is insufficient to meet existing flow demands of the Town’s existing customers.  

Therefore, the District’s sale of additional plant investments to the Town is necessary to the 

Town’s ability to continue to provide potable water service to existing customers and to 

protect service levels and the overall operation of the Town System. 



 

 

 

 In addition, due to the District’s past refusals to sell any new plant investment taps and 

especially now because of the District’s Moratorium, the Town cannot serve new single-family 

dwellings in the Town’s Service Area at a level that would be adequate even to meet minimum 

health and safety standards and at the same time provide a level of service that halfway meets the 

needs of existing customers. Consequently, the Town has been forced to impose a moratorium on 

the issuance of building permits for new residential construction to prevent the construction of 

uninhabitable dwellings in the Town that could pose serious health and safety hazards to their 

occupants, while unnecessarily exposing the Town to the added risk of suit by the Tailholt and 

Hunter’s Crossing developers. Therefore, the District’s sale of additional plant investments to 

the Town is necessary for these developers to make beneficial use of their respective 

properties and is essential to safeguarding the Town—through no fault of its own—against 

exposure to liability for damages, including lost profits, incurred by the developers due to 

their inability to sell lots to prospective buyers. 

 

 To meet its obligations under the Water Service Agreement, the Town has already fully 

appropriated $1,600,000.00 for the purchase of 100 plant investment taps necessary to meet its 

immediate flow demands. Thus, the Town is prepared to immediately purchase and pay for the 

requested 100 plant investments. The Town respectfully requests the District Board grant it a 

variance from the Moratorium (and, by extension, from the Tap Sale Criteria Policy) for the 

purchase of 100 plant investment taps.   

 

 Per Section III of the Tap Sale Criteria Policy, the Town understands this request for a 

variance “shall be presented to the Board of Directors at its next regular meeting for consideration” 

on March 14, 2022. A member of the Town’s staff will be present at that meeting.  

 

 We appreciate your consideration and, on behalf of the Town, we look forward to working 

with the District on the requested variance. Please feel free to contact me directly at 303-443-3100 

or at kmartin@h-mlaw.net should you have any comments, questions, or need additional 

information. 

 

Very truly yours, 

  

 

/s/ Marshall Keith Martin 

 

Marshall Keith Martin 

 

Cc: Nicholas Wharton, Town Manager 

 Lindsay Radcliff-Coombes, Deputy Town Manager 

 

 



 

{00973718.DOC; 3}  
1600 Stout Street  l  Suite 1710  l  Denver, CO 80202 

tel 303-534-9000  l  fax 303-534-4618  l  www. davisandceriani.com 

 
 
 

March 8, 2022 
 
Via Email (zwhite@wbapc.com) 
Mr. Zachary White, Esq. 
White Bear Ankele Tanaka & Waldron 
748 Whalers Way, Ste. D1 
Fort Collins, Colorado 80525 
 

Via Email (water@nwcwd.org) 
Board of Directors 
North Weld County Water District 
32825 CR 39 
PO Box 56 
Lucerne, Colorado 80646 

Via Email (ericr@nwcwd.org) 
North Weld County Water District 
Mr. Eric Reckentine, District Manager 
32825 CR 39 
PO Box 56 
Lucerne, Colorado 80646 

 

 
 

RE: North Weld County Water District (“NWCWD”) Tap Sale Moratorium 
 
Dear Members of the Board and Messrs. White and Reckentine: 

This firm represents Melody Homes, Inc., d/b/a D.R. Horton (“D.R. Horton”), an affiliate 
of D.R. Horton, Inc. that, until recent events, was building and selling homes within the Tailholt 
development (“Tailholt”) in Severance, Colorado.  Tailholt is in the Town of Severance’s 
(“Severance” or the “Town) service area for the provision of potable water.  Severance, in turn, 
gets its potable water from NWCWD pursuant to an Amended and Restated Water Service 
Agreement dated March 5, 2019 (the “WSA”) as amended by that First Amendment to the WSA 
dated October 25, 2021 (the “First Amendment”). 

  D.R. Horton’s work in Tailholt began in October 2020, when D.R. Horton took partial 
assignment (the “Partial Assignment”) of the development obligations contained within that 
Subdivision Improvements Agreement recorded at Reception Number 4633036 (the “SIA”) as to 
316 lots (the “Lots”) in Tailholt’s Fourth Filing.  The Partial Assignment required D.R. Horton 
to, among other things, construct the public infrastructure necessary to service the Lots (inclusive 
of potable water and sewer systems) and to reimburse its Seller for satisfying the raw water 
dedication requirements under the SIA pertaining to the Lots.  D.R. Horton completed the first 
phase of improvements in July 2021, at which point it began to pull building permits and build 
and sell new homes.  Sales of available homes in Tailholt have been brisk. 

On September 29, 2021, NWCWD imposed a moratorium on all tap sales and tap 
investments.  This forced the Town to impose a resulting moratorium on building permits, as no 
new homes can be built without a potable water tap (and NWCWD is the Town’s sole provider 



NWCWD/Permit Moratorium 
March 8, 2022 
Page 2 
  
  
 

{00973718.DOC; 3}  

of potable water).  Thus, NWCWD’s actions have brought D.R. Horton’s development, 
construction and home sales in Tailholt to a standstill.  The following may help you understand 
the magnitude of NWCWD’s moratorium (and the magnitude of the potential liability to which 
NWCWD is exposing itself unless it timely revises the same to remove the prejudice to existing 
developments such as D.R. Horton’s at Tailholt): 

 D.R. Horton has $21 million currently invested in Tailholt that it cannot recoup 
without the ability to obtain building permits and continue selling homes.  Included 
within this $21 million are 2 model homes, 81 owned finished lots, 81 owned lots in 
development, 120 owned lots awaiting future infrastructure pursuant to the SIA and 
Partial Assignment, and the raw water dedicated to the Town to facilitate the 
provision of potable water from NWCWD via the Town’s master meters and resulting 
distribution system. 

 D.R. Horton is currently incurring lost revenue from home sales of approximately $5 
million per month ($60 million annually). 

 Except for work necessitated to fully complete the 81 owned lots in development, 
D.R. Horton has been forced to shut down land development work on future phases of 
its lots in Tailholt.  This impacts $6 million of pending work and 20-25 employees of 
land developer contractors. 

 The moratorium-caused shutdown of D.R. Horton’s work at Tailholt has also resulted 
in significant job displacement, including 2 sales agents, 2 project superintendents, 
numerous home construction workers, and Town inspectors. 

Measured against the significant harm it is causing D.R. Horton and other similarly 
situated builders and developers, the facts available to us cast significant doubt upon the 
legitimacy of NWCWD’s moratorium: 

 Section 11.2 of the WSA specifically contemplates the Town’s purchase from the 
District of additional water beyond that specified in Exhibit A to the WSA.  It is our 
understanding that the Town has stood ready, willing and able to purchase additional 
plant investment taps from the District and has been continuously attempting to do so 
since at least October 29, 2020.  The District has apparently refused to sell the 
requested taps and has failed to abide by its obligations under the WSA in response to 
the Town’s requests.  Nonetheless—and despite knowing the magnitude of growth 
the Town is experiencing—NWCWD never advised the Town, prior to enacting the 
moratorium, that it may not be able to sell the Town additional water as contemplated 
by the WSA.  If not an express violation of the WSA, NWCWD’s conduct at 
minimum appears to be a violation of the covenant of good faith and fair dealing 
inherent in the same. 



NWCWD/Permit Moratorium 
March 8, 2022 
Page 3 
  
  
 

{00973718.DOC; 3}  

 D.R. Horton has fulfilled its raw water dedication obligations to the Town relative to 
its 316 lots in Tailholt.  Thus, the necessary raw water exists to service D.R. Horton’s 
future homes in Tailholt.  If NWCWD is refusing to issue taps—either directly, or in 
this case, to the Town—for Tailholt’s buildout, what is NWCWD doing with the raw 
water D.R. Horton dedicated? 

 There does not seem to be any current issue concerning the adequacy of NWCWD’s 
ability to supply potable water.  It is our understanding that in the last calendar year, 
NWCWD permitted potable water to be applied to agricultural uses in amounts more 
than adequate to serve the 316 total lots in Tailholt. 

 NWCWD’s “rationale” for its moratorium appears to be a subterfuge (or at least a 
moving target, indicating a lack of legitimacy of the same): 

o   NWCWD initially blamed the moratorium on concerns regarding the approval 
and permitting process for its planned NEWT III Pipeline Project through Fort 
Collins and Larimer Counties.  By itself, this made no sense as, by NWCWD’s 
own admission, the NEWT III project is years from completion and should have 
no bearing on the availability of water to serve projects—such as D.R. Horton’s 
at Tailholt—that are already in development and construction. 

o   NWCWD then changed its rationale when it modified the moratorium by 
resolution dated February 14, 2022.  In the February 14, 2022 resolution, the 
District claimed that the moratorium related to “capacity issues found as part of 
the District’s efforts to verify its hydraulic model.”  This, again, makes no sense.  
The District’s current system is what dictates its ability to meet the Town’s water 
delivery requirements for existing users and projects currently in development.  
The District must know the capacity of its current system.  If it does not, it is 
guilty of extreme negligence and mismanagement.  The system either has 
capacity to service existing users and projects currently in development or it 
doesn’t.  If the former is true, there is no reason for a moratorium impacting 
existing projects.1  If the latter is true, NWCWD is again guilty of extreme 

                                               
1 In imposing its moratorium, NWCWD appears to have made no effort to distinguish between 
projects currently in development and future development projects.  If there truly are capacity 
issues within NWCWD—the type of issues that must be addressed through future capital 
projects to increase capacity—then a limitation on new development projects might be 
reasonable.  But the logical point to impose such a limitation would be upon new projects not yet 
in development—i.e., projects where developers have not already spent millions in reliance on 
NWCWD’s provision of potable water.  This would have provided NWCWD with a measure of 
protection against claims by developers who have expended millions in reliance on NWCWD 
doing what it was created to do.  But by applying its moratorium to all developments, regardless 
of status or amount already expended in reliance on NWCWD’s continuing ability to provide 



NWCWD/Permit Moratorium 
March 8, 2022 
Page 4 
  
  
 

{00973718.DOC; 3}  

negligence and mismanagement and needs to clearly communicate its existing 
limitations to its constituents and customers. 

o   NWCWD’s true motivations may have been revealed by comments made by Mr. 
Reckentine at the February 14 NWCWD meeting.  There, Town Manager 
Nicholas Wharton argued that the Town should receive the 184 plant investment 
units it stands ready, willing and able to purchase.  Mr. Reckentine’s reported 
counter was that the Town should sign a new water service agreement with 
NWCWD first.  This suggests that NWCWD’s true motivation for the 
moratorium may be displeasure with its existing WSA with the Town (and 
possibly others).  It does not, however, explain why NWCWD appears to have 
taken little to no action in pursuit of a new water service agreement with the 
Town.  Nor is insistence on a new agreement reasonable, as the existing WSA 
gives NWCWD discretion concerning the terms of new water purchases 
(meaning that if NWCWD’s cost of providing water to the Town have increased, 
so too can the amount charged to the Town for the additional water it is 
requesting).   

The bottom line here is that NWCWD needs to take a moment to step back and carefully 
consider where the continuing imposition of its moratorium (or limitation) on the issuance of 
taps to projects already in construction and development will lead.  We know that D.R. Horton is 
not the only builder/developer who has expended millions in reliance on obtaining potable water 
from NWCWD.  D.R. Horton—and each of the other builder/developers who are now being 
denied building permits because of NWCWD’s refusal to commit to delivering water to the 
Town—are clearly intended third-party beneficiaries of any and all agreements by NWCWD to 
furnish potable water to the Town.  Colorado law is clear that intended third-party beneficiaries 
may bring suit on the contract to which they are a beneficiary.  See, e.g., S K Peightal Engineers, 
LTD v. Mid Valley Real Est. Sols. V, LLC, 342 P.3d 868, 872 (Colo. 2015).  That means that 
D.R. Horton and others similarly situated can—and likely will—sue NWCWD if it continues its 
moratorium in a manner which prohibits the scheduled completion of projects currently in 
construction and development.  One look at the numbers above—which will be mirrored by 
other builders/developers similarly impacted—shows how significant such lawsuits could be.   

Moreover, if and when those lawsuits prove that NWCWD could have serviced all 
projects currently in construction and development at the time of the moratorium, NWCWD’s 
constituents will rightly begin to look to NWCWD’s management and Board, asking why they 
subjected NWCWD to unnecessary litigation costs, fees and judgments (and whether there are 
avenues to recover some portion of the same).  This isn’t a path D.R. Horton or any other 
builder/developer wants to go down.  D.R. Horton would much prefer to finish its construction 
and development at Tailholt and recoup its costs as it had planned.  But with tens of millions of 
                                                                                                                                                     
potable water in adequate quantities, NWCWD has given builders and developers like D.R. 
Horton little choice but to seek recourse if the moratorium is not promptly lifted. 



NWCWD/Permit Moratorium 
March 8, 2022 
Page 5 
  
  
 

{00973718.DOC; 3}  

dollars invested and no way to recoup it without access to building permits (and potable water 
taps), D.R. Horton and other builder/developers may be left with no other alternative. 

We know that the Town has already contacted NWCWD and stands ready, willing and 
able to buy sufficient plant investment units to permit development in the Town—inclusive of 
D.R. Horton’s homes at Tailholt—to continue in the short term.  It is also our understanding that 
the Town stands ready, willing and able to discuss a reasonable new water service agreement 
with NWCWD.  We encourage you to accept the Town’s offers to move forward on both counts, 
and to do so at your March 14, 2022 meeting.  If NWCWD shows no sign of seeking a prompt 
resolution which would permit the Town to acquire the plant investment taps and water 
necessary to permit D.R. Horton’s construction at Tailholt to continue as scheduled, the next 
correspondence you receive from us will be a Colorado Open Records Act request aimed at 
obtaining the documents necessary to file suit against NWCWD and such other parties as may be 
necessary to obtain full relief from NWCWD’s moratorium (and the Town’s resulting 
moratorium on building permits). 

We look forward to reviewing the outcome of NWCWD’s March 14, 2022 Board 
meeting. 

 Very truly yours, 

 
 Scott W. Wilkinson 
 

cc:  client (via email)  



HAYASHI & MACSALKA, LLC 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

1650 38TH STREET 
SUITE 103 WEST 

BOULDER, COLORADO 80301 
________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
WILLIAM P. HAYASHI        Tel:  303-443-3100 
MARY LYNN MACSALKA        Fax:  303-443-7835 

MARSHALL KEITH MARTIN        www.h-mlaw.net 

 

February 25, 2022 

 

North Weld County Water District 

Attn: Eric Reckentine 

32825 CR 39 

Lucerne, CO  80646 

Via Email: ericr@nwcwd.org  

 

Zachary P. White 

White, Bear, Ankele, Tanaka & Waldron 

748 Whalers Way, Ste. D1 

Ft. Collins, CO 80525 

Via Email: zwhite@wbapc.com 

 

 

Re: Amended and Restated Water Service Agreement – Town of Severance 

 

Dear Mr. Reckentine: 

 

 Please be advised that Hayashi & Macsalka, LLC, serves as legal counsel for the Town of 

Severance. I am contacting you regarding the Town’s Amended and Restated Water Service 

Agreement dated March 5, 2019 (the “Contract”), with North Weld County Water District 

(“District”) and the First Amendment to the Contract, which is dated October 21, 2021 (the “First 

Amendment”).  

 

 As you are aware, the Contract and the First Amendment outline a number of the District’s 

obligations with respect to, among other things, the Town’s purchase of plant investment taps from 

the District, the District’s sale of plant investment taps to the Town, and the District’s furnishing 

and delivery of treated, potable water to the Town System up to the Delivery Points, based on the 

total number of taps purchased.  I have attached the Contract and First Amendment to this letter 

for your reference (capitalized terms in this letter shall have the same meaning ascribed to them in 

the Contract and First Amendment).  

 

 It has come to our attention that the District received an e-mail sent by the Town Engineer, 

Chris Messersmith, dated October 29, 2020, requesting to purchase a total of 114 additional plant 

investment taps for a total of $1,600,800.00 according to a 2-year purchase plan, which the Town 

established in coordination with District representatives. In that same email, Mr. Messersmith 

indicated the Town Board had approved an appropriation in an amount equal to the purchase price 

stated in the purchase plan.   



 

 

 

 Surprisingly, the District never responded in writing to the Town’s 2020 tap purchase 

request. Since October 2020 (over a year ago), the Town has repeated its request to purchase 

additional plant investment taps from the District. Specifically, in June 2021, Mr. Messersmith 

sent an email to you requesting to purchase 65 plant investment taps. Shortly after the first of this 

year, the Town provided you with a proposed second amendment to the Contract, also seeking to 

purchase of 65 plant investment taps.  As recently as February 8, 2022, the Town Manager asked 

you if the proposed second amendment would be placed on the District’s February 14th meeting 

agenda for consideration by the District’s Board.  In response to these repeated requests, you have 

either ignored them outright, offered evasive or ambiguous comments about the number of plant 

investment taps the District is willing to provide to the Town, or equivocated about the District’s 

intent to sell any taps to the Town.  Pursuant to Section 11.2 of the Contract, the District had until 

November 28, 2020, to respond in writing to the Town’s October 2020 request. Over a year later, 

the District is still no closer to providing a written response to the Town that clearly and 

unambiguously states the District’s position as to if and the number of taps the District is willing 

to sell to the Town.    

 

 Moreover, under Section 3 of the First Amendment, in the event the Town’s demand 

exceeds the existing Water Flow Requirement under the Contract, not only is the Town obligated 

to purchase plant investment taps from the District sufficient to meet the Town’s demand, but the 

District also is obligated to sell to the Town such additional plant investment taps, and to furnish 

water to the Town at the Delivery Points, according to the new Water Flow Requirement allowed 

under the total taps purchased.  Starting as far back as October 2020, the Town has expressed to 

you a desire to purchase additional plant investment taps, not only after the Town exceeded the 

Water Flow Requirement on several occasions, but also in anticipation of various upcoming land 

use approvals that would entitle several residential developments, which certainly would impose 

demands in excess of the Water Flow Requirement.  Specifically, the Town requested to purchase 

114 plant investment taps in October 2020, and then in 2021 the Town again requested to purchase 

another additional 65 plant investment taps from the District, for a total of 184 plant investment 

taps.   

 

 Finally, the District’s “Tap Sale Criteria Policy” recently adopted on February 14, 2022, 

appears to arbitrarily exclude municipal wholesale customers within Zone 1, such as the Town, 

from any opportunity to purchase taps from the District.  Ironically, the District’s new “Tap Sale 

Criteria Policy” is a clear repudiation of it its reciprocal obligation under the First Amendment to 

sell additional plant investment taps needed by the Town. 

 

 This letter serves to notify you that the Town considers the District in breach of the Contract 

and First Amendment, and of its obligation of good faith and fair dealing, due to its failure to 

timely comply with Section 11.2 of the Contract and its refusal to honor its reciprocal obligation 

under the First Amendment to sell the additional plant investment taps needed and requested by 

the Town.  Moreover, this letter serves to notify you of the District’s obligation under Section 13.7 

of the Contract to cure the District’s breach of the Contract.  Toward that end, the Town stands 

ready to purchase 100 plant investment taps from the District, having already fully appropriated 

$1,600,000.00 to fund this purchase, and demands a written response from the District to this 

request and indicating its intent to cure its breach by March 28, 2022, at 5:00 p.m.   

 



 

 

 Not only is the District’s breach of the Contract and First Amendment substantial—it has 

failed to perform an essential and material term of the Contract—the Town is now in an even worse 

predicament than the District.  Without any additional plant investment taps immediately available 

for purchase from the District, and due to the District’s refusal to sell any new plant investment 

taps in breach of the Contract and First Amendment, the Town cannot now or in the foreseeable 

future deliver any amount of additional water to the Delivery Points beyond the current Water 

Flow Requirement under the Contract, much less serve new single-family dwellings in the Town’s 

Service Area at a level adequate to meet even minimum health and safety standards, and at the 

same time provide a level of service that halfway meets the usage requirements of existing 

customers.  Consequently, the Town has been forced to impose a moratorium on the issuance of 

building permits for residential development within its service area, unnecessarily exposing the 

Town to the added risk of suit by affected property owners or developers.   

 

 Town representatives are willing to meet with representatives from the District to hear its 

position on the sale of additional plant investment taps to the Town and to discuss a potential 

resolution, up to and including a reformation of the Contract and First Amendment.  However, if 

the District is unwilling to constructively discuss such matters, or if it is unwilling to actively and 

diligently pursue its obligations and cure its breach under the Contract and First Amendment, the 

Town is prepared file a lawsuit against the District in Weld County District Court. 

 

 Please contact this office no later than close of business on March 28, 2022, to resolve this 

matter.   

 

Sincerely, 

 

/s/ Marshall Keith Martin 

 

Marshall Keith Martin 

 

Cc: Nicholas Wharton, Town Manager 

 Lindsay Radcliff-Coombes, Deputy Town Manager 

 

 



 NoCO Custom Homes  
2026 Bear Mountain Drive Unit 107, Fort Collins, CO 80525 

www.NoCOCustomHomes.com 
Jason@NoCOCustomHomes.com 

To whom it may concern, 

  I’m writing to request to the board to grant a variance on this property so I am able to purchase a 
water tap on this property. 

 

Address: 7471 County Road 74 (AKA 7471 Hannah way), Windsor, CO 

Parcel: 070532300007  

Legal: PT SW4 32-7-67 LOT A REC EXEMPT RECX20-0083 

 

Jason Jones (Builder)_________________________________________Date________________ 

 

 

2/18/22























11.  Executive Session: The Board reserves the  
       right to enter into Executive Session for  
       the following purposes: Receiving legal  
       advice and discussing matters subject to  
       negotiation and strategy pursuant to  
       § 24-6-402(4)(b) & (e), C.R.S. related to  
       Eagle View Farms, LLC Litigation and  
       Severance Water Plant Investment  
       Variance Request 

 


